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KRISHNAPATNAM RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED
Registered Office: Amsri Faust Complex, Door No 9-1-164/A to 166,
5th Floor, Sarojini Devi Road, Secunderabad- 500003, Telangana
Ph. No. 011-26738406, Fax. No. 011-26182957
CIN:U45200TG2006PLC051378

NOTICE
Of the 15thAnnual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the 15t Annual General Meeting (AGM) of members
of Krishnapatnam Railway Company Limited will be held on Thursday, 25th
November, 2021 at 1530 hrs through Video Conferencing / Other Audio
Visual Means to transact the following businesses:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. Adoption of Financial Statements & Board Report

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the
Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 together with the Report

of the Board of Directors, and the Auditors thereon.

2. Appointment of Director
To appoint a Director in place of Shri M P Singh, (DIN No. 08165734), who

retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

3. Appointment of Director
To appoint a Director in place of Ms. Shilpi Agarwal, (DIN No. 08004390), who

retires by rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

4. Appointment of Director
To appoint a Director in place of Shri B K Reddy, (DIN No. 07823758), who

retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

5. Appointment & Remuneration of Statutory Auditors for the year
2021-22

As per the provisions of section 139(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
appointment of Statutory Auditors of the Company is made by the Comptroller
& Auditor General of India (C&AG). Section 142 of the Companies Act, 2013
provides that, the remuneration of the auditor of the Company shall be fixed
by the Company in General Meeting or in such manner as the Company may
determine in the General Meeting. Therefore the following resolution is

proposed before the General Meeting:
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KRISHNAPATNAM RAILWAYCOMPANYLIMITED

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the

following resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to fix the remuneration of Statutory Auditors of the Company
appointed by the office of Comptroller & Auditor General of India for auditing

of Accounts of the Company for financial year 2021-22.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
6. Appointment and Remuneration of Managing Director

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the

following resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of sections 196, 197,
198, 203 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and other
applicable provisions, if any, including any statutory modifications or re-
enactments thereof for the time being in force and subject to the limits
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013, such other approvals as may be
necessary in this regard, consent of the shareholders is be and hereby
accorded to the appointment of Shri K Siva Prasad, IRTSgetd) as Managing
Director of the Company (KRCL) for a period of 3 (Three) years with effect from
April 19, 2021, extendable by (Two) 2 years, subject to maximum Age limit of
65 years, in the pay scale of Director of Schedule-‘A’ Company (CPSE) minus
pension, with terms & conditions, perks and benefits detailed in explanatory

statement attached hereto and which forms part of this resolution,”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of loss or inadequacy of profits
during the tenure of Shri K Siva Prasad, Managing Director, the said
remuneration be regarded as minimum remuneration in accordance with
section 198 (3) read with schedule V and other applicable provisions of the
said Act and the company be and is hereby authorized to take such approvals
as may be required for payment of such remuneration in case of such

eventuality”.

—— Page 2
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KRISHNAPATNAMRAILWAYCOMPANYLIMITED

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company,
hereinafter referred to as the ‘Board’ (which term shall be deemed to include
any committee which the Board constitute to execute its powers, including
powers conferred by this resolution), be and is hereby authorized to further
vary and / increase the remuneration including salary, perquisites,
allowances etc. within such prescribed ceiling limits of the managerial
remuneration, as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Schedule V thereto and/or any guidelines prescribed by the Government from
time to time or as may be suitably amended and to give effect to such
modification, relaxation or variation without any further reference to the

members of the Company in General Meeting.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Shri K Siva Prasad, Managing Director shall
continue to hold the office of Director, without being subjected to retire by

rotation.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company
(including its Committee thereof) and / or Company Secretary of the
Company, be and are hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters
and things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient to give

effect to this resolution.”

By Order of Board of Directors

Date: November 02, 2021 Trilok Garg
Place: New Delhi Company Secretary

Page 3

i 095




KRISHNAPATNAMRAILWAYCOMPANYLIMITED

NOTES:

1.

In view of the outbreak of COVID -19 pandemic, social distancing norms is being
followed and the continuing restriction on movement of persons at several places
in the country and pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated 8t April 2020,
Circular No.17/2020 dated 13t April 2020, Circular No. 20/2020 dated 5t May
2020, Circular No. 33/2020 dated September 28, 2020 and General Circular No.
39/2020 dated December 31, 2020 and General Circular No.02/2021 dated
January 13, 2021 (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”) permitted the
Companies to hold their Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) through video
conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM) . Hence, Members can
attend and participate at the ensuing AGM through VC/OAVM. LINK FOR
ATTENDING THE AGM ON VC WILL BE SENT TO THE MEMBERS IN EMAIL ON
THEIR REGISTERED EMAIL ADDRESS WITH THE COMPANY.

. As per aforementioned MCA circulars Company is allowed to send notice of the

Meeting and other correspondences related thereto, through electronic mode i.e.
emails. In compliance with the requirements of MCA Circulars above, an
electronic copy of the Notice of 15% Annual General Meeting of the Company
along with Annual Report for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021
consisting of financial statements, Board’s Report, Auditors’ Report and other
documents required to be attached therewith (Collectively referred to as Notice)
are being sent to members on their registered e- mail ids with the Company and
no physical copy of the Notice has been sent by the Company to any member.

. If there is any change in the e-mail ID already registered with the Company,

members are requested to immediately notify such change to the Company by
sending a request on krcl.rail@gmail.com

. Since the requirement of physical attendance of AGM by members has been

dispensed with by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, there is no requirement of
appointment of proxies by individual members. Accordingly, the facility of
appointment of proxy by members will not be available. However,
Institutional /Corporate members are required to send a certified copy of the
Board Resolution, pursuant to section 113 of the Companies Act 2013,
authorizing their representative to attend and vote at the AGM through VC.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding
maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Register of
Contracts and Arrangements in which Directors are interested maintained under
Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 shall be made available only in
electronic form for inspection during the Annual General Meeting through VC.

. All other relevant documents referred to in the accompanying

notice/explanatory statement shall be made open for inspection by the members
only in electronic form at the AGM and on all working days, except Saturdays,
from 11:00 a.m. to 01:00 p.m. up to the date of the Annual General Meeting
subject to receipt of request from member(s) to this effect on krcl.rail@gmail.com

. The Notice for this Meeting along with requisite documents and the Annual

Report for the financial year ended 2020-21 is available on the Company’s
website http://krcl.org.in/

- Page 4
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KRISHNAPATNAMRAILWAYCOMPANYLIMITED

. Members are requested to contact the Authorized representative of the Company

on Mob: 9045890079, e-mail: krcl.rail@gmail.com during Monday to Friday
between 10:00 AM to 05:00 PM till the date of AGM for any assistance with
using the Video Conference facility for attending the AGM or reply to their
queries/ redressal of complaints, if any.

During the 15t AGM (being called through VC), where a poll on any item is
required the members shall cast their vote(s) on the item(s) only by sending
emails through their registered email address with the Company. The said
emails shall only be sent to Company on its email: krcl.rail@gmail.com.

The facility of joining the meeting shall be open 15 minutes before the time
scheduled to start the meeting and shall be closed 15 minutes after such
scheduled time of the AGM.

The related statement pursuant to section 102 of the Companies act, 2013 in
respect of item no. 6 set out in the notice is annexed hereto.

TO:

ii.

ii.

iv.

ALL THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY.
STATUTORY AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY.
SECRETARIAL AUDITOR OF THE COMPANY

ALL DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY.

Page 5
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KRISHNAPATNAMRAILWAYCOMPANYLIM[TED

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT”)

The following Statement sets out all material facts relating to Item-6 in
the Special Business mentioned in the accompanying notice and forms

an integral part of the resolution at item-6.

Item No.6
| The MD Selection Committee nominated by the Board of Directors of the
Company for Selection of Managing Director met the shortlisted candidates
on 17t February 2021 and unanimously recommended the name of Shri K
Siva Prasad, IRTS for the post of Managing Director of the Company.
Subsequently, the Board of Directors in its 637 BoD meeting held on 24t
| February 2021 accepted the recommendations of MD Selection Committee
and approved the selection of Shri K Siva Prasad as Managing Director of the
Company for an initial tenure of three years extendable to five years. Shri K
' Siva Prasad (DIN 09124374) joined his duties and took charge as Managing
I Director of the Company on 19.04.2021 (F/N).

| Shri K Siva Prasad, an IRTS (reta) of 1986 Batch, is a Post graduate in science
with a Bachelors’ Degree (B. Sc.) from Osmania University, Masters’ Degree
i.e. M. Sc. from IIT Kharagpur and holds a Masters’ Degree in Business

Administration (MBA) from Osmania University, Hyderabad.

Shri Prasad retired as Principal Chief Operations Manager (PCOM), South
Central Railways (in HAG grade) on 31.03.2021 after an illustrious service of
33 years to the Indian Railways & the Nation. During his service in Indian
Railways he held various important and senior positions i.e. Principal Chief
Operations Manager (PCOM), Principal Chief Commercial Manager (PCCM),
Chief Freight traffic Manager (CFTM), Chief Passenger traffic Manager (CPTM),
in NF Railway, Southern Railway, South Western Railway and South Central

Railway.

Page 6
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The Board of Directors are of the view that the Company will be greatly

benefited by his vast Railway experience in smooth running of the business

and managing all affairs of the Company.

In terms of the Vacancy Notification for the post, the Managing Director was

appointed in the scale of pay of a Director of Schedule- ‘A’ CPSE and the perks
and benefits payable to Managing Director to be decided by the Company’s

Board minus pension, if any. Accordingly, the Board of Directors of the

Company in its 64th meeting held June 22, 2021 approved the remuneration,

perks and all other entitlements of Shri K Siva Prasad, Managing Director as

reproduced below:

Pay and Perks of Managing Director/KRCL) :

Sl. | Particulars Details
No.

1. | Basic Pay Rs. 2,24,100/- (In the pay band of INR 180000 -
340000 with annual increment of 3% |[Three
percent] subject to protection of basic pay).

Note: 1st annual increment shall be due after
completion of one year from the date of joining.
2. | Dearness As per the IDA notified from time to time for 2017
Allowance, pay scales

3. | Contribution to As per Extant Guidelines applicable.
Provident fund,
Gratuity

4. | Provision of TADK | Provision of TADK in person or

in person or reimbursement of expenses on TADK Rs.
reimbursement of 20,000/-
expenses on TADK
5. | Cafeteria Allowance | 35% of basic
(35% to be chosen
from the following
allowance:
Prof. Updation-
15%
Elec. Allowance 6%
Recreation
Allowance - 6%
Special Personal
Allowance — 4%
House Upkeep
Page 7
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KRISHNAPATNAMRAILWAVCOMPANYL[MITED

Allowance - 4%
Fitness Allowance -
6%

Medical Allowance
for Outdoor
Treatment - 7%

HRA/Lease
Accommodation

House Rent Allowance: The classification of cities
and the rate of HRA shall be as mentioned below.
Accordingly, the details of the recommended HRA
are mentioned below:

Classification of cities Rates of
HRA

X — Class 24% of Basic
(Population of S50 lakhs & |Pay

above)
Y - Class 16% of Basic
(Population of 5 lakhs to 50 | Pay

lakhs)
Z — Class 8% of Basic
(Population below 5 lakhs) Pay

Note: The rate of HRA will be revised to 27%, 18%
and 9% when IDA crosses 50%, and further
revised to 30%, 20% and 10% when IDA crosses
100%.

No office accommodation at the expense of the
Company would be provided or arranged by the
Company at his residence.

However, facilities like machineries and
equipment’s which are required to facilitate him
to discharge his official duties from residence will
be provided, at company’s cost. Repair and
maintenance (including replacements) thereof
shall also be borne by the Company.

Self Lease & Third
Party Lease

In lieu of HRA the facility of Lease may be availed
as per following ceiling:

Classification of cities Limit of
Lease rental
X — Class 27% of Basic

(Population of 50 lakhs & |Pay
above)

Y - Class 19% of Basic
(Population of 5 lakhs to S0 | Pay
lakhs)
Z - Class 11% of Basic
(Population below 5 lakhs) Pay

Page 8
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KRISHNAPATNAMRAILWAYCOMPANYLIMITED

Deduction @1 % of basic pay towards lease
accommodation provided.

8. [ Guest As per actual.
Entertainment
Expenditure
9. | Provision of Car MD will be entitled to a Chauffer Driven Car for
with Driver official and personal use.
For use of official transport i.e. Chauffer
Driver Car an amount of Rs. 2,000/- per month
shall be recovered from monthly pay towards
personal use of vehicle without any ceiling on
non-duty journey.
10. | Medical e Medical checkup for self, Spouse and
dependent family - as per actual
e Room rent Suite- Upto Rs. 12,000
¢ Indoor Treatment — Full
e Reimbursement outdoor — 7% as
included in the Cafeteria of Allowance (35%)
e Health check up No Limit specified
11. | Hard & Soft Hard & Soft Furnishing Allowance: Towards
furnishing various soft and hard furnishing at his residence
allowance: MD will be entitled for an allowance of five lakhs
rupees, once during his tenure. However, an
additional recovery of 2.5% of basic would be
made per month on this account. This would be
in addition to the rent recoverable.
12. | Travelling on tour While travelling on official duty by Air — Executive
Class, by Rail 1st AC and by Road - AC Car
13. | Daily Allowance The rate of daily allowances shall be INR 2,300/-

Note: The above daily allowances shall increase
by 25% whenever IDA crosses 50% and a further
increase of 25% when IDA crosses 100%. Other
terms and conditions shall remain same.

Daily allowance may be drawn for broken periods
of a ‘Day’ on the following scales:

For absence of less than 6 | 30% of per day
Hours allowance

For absence of 6 Hours and | 70% of per day
more but less than 12 | allowance
Hours
For absence of 12 Hours & | 100% of per day
above allowance

Page 9
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KRISHNAPATNAMRAILWAYCOMPANYLIMITED

In addition to above, if he does not stay in hotel
additional DA of one day for each night of stay
outside headquarters at the rate of normal
entitlement will be paid.

14,

Lodging - Hotel
Entitlement on
tour

Accommodation/ Lodging: Following maximum
lodging allowances shall be admissible subject to
actual whenever MD/KRCL is travelling on
official tour:

X’ Class Cities

Upto the rent | 90% of

of a Deluxe amount
Suite in Hotel | admissible
Ashoka, New for ‘X’ Class
Delhi. Cities

Note:

e The above rates of accommodation are

service fees, taxes and

‘Z’ Class
Cities

80% of
amount
admissible
for ‘X’ Class
Cities

Y’ Class
Cities

exclusive of
surcharges.

e Reimbursement of expenses towards own
lodging arrangements - whenever such
arrangements are made on his own in ORH or
PSU Guest House, or anywhere else
additional DA of one day for each such night
stay will be admissible to MD/KRCL.

15.

Leave in a Calendar
Year:

Casual Leave — 12 Days + 2 RH per annum

Sick leave/ LHAP - 12 days [24 half days] per
annum

LAP/ Earned Leave — 30 Days per annum

At the time of final settlement, Encashment of
both accumulated LAP/ Earned Leave and Sick
leave/ LHAP calculated @ Basic Pay + DA (on the
basis of last pay drawn) subject to maximum
limit of 300 days

16.

Leave Travel
concession

As per extant guidelines applicable to Director of
RVNL.

17.

Membership of a
Club

Reimbursement of subscription for Membership
of one Club.

18.

Mobile Handset,
Laptop, tablet etc.

He shall be entitled to gadgets like Mobile
Handset, Laptop, tablet etc. which are required
to facilitate him to discharge his official duties at
company’s cost. Repair and maintenance
(including replacements) thereof shall also be
borne by the Company.

Note -

Page
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KRISHNAPATNAMRAILWAYCOMPANYLlMlTED
After the useful life of the asset is over as per the
policy of the Company, MD can retain the asset
by paying an amount equivalent to deprecated
value of the asset.
19. | Mobile, Telephone | The Company shall bear the cost of his mobile

and Internet expenditure, telephone & internet facility at
Expenditure home, etc.

20. | Brief case Rs. 12,000

21. | Birthday Gift Rs. 5,000

22. | One Inverter Rs. 17,000

23. | One AC with Rs. 25,000
Stabilizer

An amount equal to monthly pension (before commutation) shall be deducted “
from monthly pay of MD/KRCL. |
This explanation together with the accompanying notice is and should be |
treated as an abstract of Terms & Conditions related to appointment and II‘
remuneration of Managing Director/KRCL in terms of provisions of schedule |

V of Companies Act, 2013. [l

In accordance with the provisions of Sections 196, 197 & other applicable ‘
provisions of the Act, read with Schedule V to the said Act, the appointment
and the terms of remuneration payable to Shri K Siva Prasad requires the |

approval of members by Ordinary Resolution. ||

Hence, the Board recommends the Resolution at item No. 6 for approval of

the shareholders as Ordinary Resolution.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their
relatives are deemed to be interested or concerned in the said resolution

except Shri K Siva Prasad, Managing Director. |

By Order of Board of Directors ‘

1/@«";5

Date: November 02, 2021 Trilok Garg
Place: New Delhi Company Secretary |

Page
11
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KRISHNAPATNAM RAILWAYCOMPANYLIMITED

Statement of Particulars pursuant to Schedule- V of Companies Act,
2013:

I. General information:

(1) Nature of industry: Construction, Operations-Maintenance and
management of 114 KM New BG Rail line project between Obulavaripalle-
Krishnapatnam in Andhra Pradesh

(2) Date of commencement of commercial production: July 03, 2019

(3) In case of new companies, expected date of commencement of
activities as per project approved by financial institutions appearing in
the prospectus- Not applicable

(4) Financial performance based on given indicators- Not applicable

(5) Foreign investments or collaborations, if any- Not applicable

I1. Information about the appointee:

(1) Background details: as given above.

(2) Past remuneration: As per pay scale applicable to officers of Central
Government in HAG grade (last drawn basic pay p.m. was Rs. 2,24,100/-).
(3) Recognition or awards

(4) Job profile and his suitability: as above

(5) Remuneration proposed: as above

(6) Comparative remuneration profile with respect to industry, size of
the company, profile of the position and person (in case of expatriates
the relevant details would be with respect to the country of his origin):
Not Applicable

(7) Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the company, or
relationship with the managerial personnel 15[or other director], if any:

Not Applicable

III. Other information:

(1) Reasons of loss or inadequate profits: Although the operations &

earnings got severaly affected by economic slowdown of 2019-20 followed by

Covid-19 during FY 2020-21, still the Company is earning operational profit.

Page
12
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However, Net loss is recorded in the books of accounts due to high

depreciation and finance cost.

(2) Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement: The Company
is taking suitable steps to (a) improve earnings by attracting new customers,
(b) minimize the finance cost, and (c) minimize the expenditures, with an aim

to make the organization a profitable one as soon as possible.

(3) Expected increase in productivity and profits in measurable terms:

yet to be measured.

By Order of Board of Directors

Date: November 02, 2021 Trilok Garg
Place: New Delhi Company Secretary

Page
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KRISI-INAPATNAM RAILWJ\V COMPAN\" LIM[TICU

BOARD’S REPORT

To
The Members,

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the 15t Annual Report on the
working of your Company along with Audited Annual Accounts, for the
Financial Year ended March 31, 2021.

1. Financial Performance: Summary of Financial Results

In Rs. Lakhs

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Revenue from Operations* 21,219.09 42,513.16
Other Income 594.33 580.41
Profit/Loss before Depreciation, Finance
Costs, Exceptional Items and Tax Expense 21,813.42 43,093.57
Less: Depreciation / Amortisation /
Impairment 9,570.65 7,303.78
Profit / Loss Before Finance Cost,
Exceptional items and Tax Expense 12,242.77 35,789.79
Less: Finance Cost 21,460.89 17,345.13
Profit / Loss Before Exceptional items and
Tax Expense (9,218.12) 18,444.66
Less : Employees Benefit Expenses, O&M
Expenses and Other Expenses 7,189,94 25,666.58
Profit / Loss Before Tax Expense (16,408.06) (7,221.92)
Less: Tax Expense (Current & Deferred) (5,726.36) (2,362.56)
Profit / Loss for the Year (1) (10,681.70) (4,859.36)
Total Comprehensive Income (2) - -
Total (1+2) (10,681.70) (4,859.36)
Balance of Profit /Loss for the earlier Years = =
Less : Transfer to Debenture Redemption
Reserve - -
Less : Transfer to Reserves z n
Less : Dividend paid on Equity Shares - -
Less : Dividend paid on Preference Shares - -
Less : Dividend Distribution Tax - o
Balance Carried Forward (PAT) (10,681.70) (4,859.36)
Earnings Per Share (1.71) (0.78)
- Basic (1.71) (0.78)
- Diluted (1.71) (0.78)

*Figures of revenue and expenditures given above and recorded in Financial Statements
are based on assumptions taken while preparation of financial statements as per IND-AS,
Actual figures of revenue from operations and O&M expenses are given at para 2 below.
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2. Operations and Performance of the Company

During year 2020-21 the country witnessed 15t of its kind in the modern
history and worst health as well economic pandemic of this century, called
Covid-19. The impact of this crisis was so severe that so many business had
to either shut down or struggled with discontinuation of operations for a
significant part of the year and recorded negative revenue at the closing of

the financial year,

COVID-19 put an immediate halt to many business activities across the
globe, as several countries had shut down their ports, airports and domestic
transportation while imposing nation-wide lockdowns, leading to a
disturbance in business and civil life. India took special measures to control
the spread by imposing one of the longest lockdowns in the world, to
cushion the scarce availability of healthcare resources, The enormity of the
lockdown affected manufacturing activities and supply chains alike,
disrupting the overall economy.

As per the official figures released by the Central Government, during the FY
2020-21 the India’s Industrial Production (IIP) got shrunk by 8.6%
compared to 0.8% contraction in the IIP during FY 2019-20. The GDP
during FY 2020-21 was also contracted by about 7.3% mainly due to Covid-
19 as compared to 4.0% growth in 2019-20.

The Company is proud to declare that the movement of Traffic/operations
on the SPV line section continued without any halt in these most difficult
times during 18t quarter of the Financial Year 2020-21, when most of the
business activities faced restrictions due to national lockdown.

In spite of all the odds a total 8.81 MT traffic moved on the Line of KRCL
during FY 2020-21, in comparison to 11.83 MT traffic carried through the
line, during FY 2019-20. There was a decrease of about 3.02 MT i.e. 26.0%
in the movement of traffic volume on the Line during the period under
report, compared to FY 2019-20.

During the year the Company earned Net operational earnings Rs. 150.18
Cr., (after defraying all O&M costs) in comparison to Rs.177.37 Cr. for FY
2019-20. During the year there was a decrease in net operational earnings
of about 15%, despite of 26% decrease in volume of Traffic movement.

Fundamentally, the movement of Traffic on the Railway Line of the Company
depends on (i) volumes of (a) raw material consumption, (b) finished product
generated by the industries/plants being served through SPV line, (ii)
Import/Export policies of the Government and (iii) the performance of

2
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Krishnapatnam Port. The overall performance of the Company also depends
on the nature of growth of the Industrial sector in the hinterland.

3. Operations & Maintenance of 114 KM Line between KAPT-OBVP

Operations of the complete section between KAPT and OBVP of 114 KM are
carried out by Railways and the Company took over the fixed P-Way, OHE, S
& T and TRD Maintenance of the 93 Km section between Obulavaripalle
(OBVP) and Venkatachalam Rd. Jn. (VRJN) with effect from 3rd July, 2019 in
order to save on Fixed Maintenance Cost. The Company was already
carrying out the fixed P-way maintenance of the 21 Km section between
KAPT and VKT.

Further, during the period under report, Company took over S&T, OHE,
Electrical General and PSI Maintenance on the 21 Km section from SCR

with effect from June 01, 2020.

The Company has awarded contracts for P-Way/Track including keyman,
S&T, OHE, Electrical General and PSI Maintenance of the complete line
section between Obulavaripalle and Krishnapatnam station of SPV, and has
appointed supervisory staff to check quality of maintenance work being done

on the line.

The Company is in discussion with S C Railway for execution of a fresh O &
M Agreement for the complete 114 Km BG Electrified Railway Line.

4. Reserves
Except unabsorbed loss for the year, the Company does not propose to carry

any amount to any reserve.

5. Share Capital and Debt Structure
During the year under review, there was no change in the Capital Structure

of the Company. Authorized share Capital of the Company is Rs. 650 Crore.
Issued, subscribed and paid-up Equity Share capital of the Company on 31st
March, 2021 is Rs. 625 Crore.

The Company has obtained a Term Loan of Rs. 1074.97 Crore (sanctioned
limit Rs. 1083 Crore) from schedule Banks/FI, prior to the commencement
of financial year 2020-21 to finance the construction of the project. The
Principle Term loan is payable in 52 quarterly instalments starting from
September, 2019. During the FY 2020-21 the Company has paid four
quarterly instalments aggregating Rs. 51.06 Cr. of the Term Loan and the
outstanding balance of the Term Loan as on 31st March, 2021 is Rs. 991.66

Crore.
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6. Dividend
During the year the Company earned no profit after tax. Hence the Directors
do not recommend any dividend for the Financial Year ended on 31stMarch,

2021.

7. Changes in the nature of the Business
During the year under review, there were no changes in nature of business

of the Company.

8. Material changes and Commitments affecting the Financial Position
of the Company

There are no material changes and commitments, from the date of the

Balance Sheet till the date of this Report, affecting the financial position of

the Company, except the impact of Covid- 19 pandemic on the revenue from

operations.

9. Impact of Covid-19 Pandemic on Financial Position of the Company

The year 2020-21 threw at the world a bedlam of novel coronavirus (Covid-
19), threatening all that was taken for granted -mobility, safety, and a
normal life itself. This, in turn, posed the most formidable economic
challenge to India and to the world in a century.

Initially the Union Government had to impose National Lockdown, which
continued till 31st May, 2020 and the Lockdown further slowed down the
economy, which was already in severe depression during last quarter of FY

2019-20.

All the industrial production, Import/export of commodities was harshly
affected across all sectors (except medical and essential commodities) and
caused in lesser volumes of Traffic movement on KRCL Line also. However,
by the closing of financial year 2020-21 the economy has shown signs of V
shape recovery and Traffic movement on SPV line section also increased to
almost pre covid levels. During the Months April to July 2021, per month
average number of Rakes moved is 255, as against the average of 171 Rakes
moved during the corresponding months during 2020.

The traffic during FY 2021-22 is expected to remain stable during first 6 to 8
months due to recovery of the industries from impact of COVID 19
Pandemic and thereafter the traffic is likely to increase at least up to the
levels of pre covid year i.e. FY 2019-20 in the corresponding period.
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10. E=xtract of Annual Return

The Annual Return, pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 11 of the Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014, is available on Company’s website i.e. http://krcl.org.in/

11. Details of Board of Directors

11.1 Board’s composition, Category of Directors and their Meetings

The Board is collectively responsible for the sustainable success of the
Company under the leadership of Chairman. The Company’s Board has an
optimum combination of Non-Executive Nominee Directors and reflects
diversity in terms of disciplines, professions, social groups, and gender and
stakeholder interest.

The strength of the Board as on March 31, 2021 was Eleven (11) Directors.
They are as follows:

Sl Name DIN Designation

No. Number

1 Sh. Shushant Kumar Mishra (MoR) |[07869414 Chairperson

2 Dr. D. V. Subrahmanyam (RVNL) 08729104 Nominee director
3 Sh. D.K. Gupta (SDCL) 08203085 Nominee Director
“+ Sh. Vinay Kumar Prajapati (SDCL) 09062988 Nominee Director
5 Sh. Sajal Mittra (AKPL) 02625510 Nominee Director
6 Mrs. Shilpi Agarwal (RVNL) 08004390 Nominee Director
7 Sh. Alok K Mehta (NMDC) 07474850 Nominee Director
8 Sh. M. P. Singh (RVNL) 08165734 Nominee Director
9 Sh. B. K. Reddy (RVNL) 07823758 Nominee director
10 | Sh. N. P. Ramakrishna Reddy (GoAP) | 06971454 Nominee Director
11 | Sh. G. J. Rao (AKPL) 01724002 Nominee Director

During the financial year ended March 31, 2021, the Board of Directors met
Five (5) times on 23t June, 2020, 25t July, 2020, 24th September, 2020,
18th December, 2020 and 24t February, 2021,

11.2 Details of attendance of each Director in the Board meetings held
during the period April 01, 2020 to March 31, 2021:

Sl. | Name of the Director Designation Meetings Meetings
No Held during | Attended
the tenure
1 Sh. Sushant Kumar | Chairperson 5 3
Mishra
5
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2 Dr. D. V. | Acting Managing |5 5
Subrahmanyam Director
3 Mr. D.K. Gupta Nominee Director |5 3
4 Mr. M. P. Singh Nominee Director |5 3
5 Mrs. Shilpi Agarwal Nominee Director |5 5
6 Mr. B. K. Reddy Nominee Director |5 5
7 Sh. G J Rao Nominee Director |5 3
8 Mr. Sumit Deb Nominee Director |2 2
9 Mr. Alok K. Mehta Nominee director 3 1
10 | Mr. Siddharth Jain Nominee Director |2 0
11 | Mr. N P Ramakrishna | Nominee Director |3 2
Reddy
12 | Mr. S Subba Rao Nominee Director |3 3
13 | Mr. Sajal Mittra Nominee Director |2 2
14 | Mr. Devendra Kumar | Nominee Director |4 2
Rai
15 | Mr. V K Prajapati Nominee Director |1 1

*Cessation/ Appointment/Re-appointment of Directors during April 01,
2020 to March 31, 2021. Details are given under section 11.3 below.

11.3 Changes in the Board during the period April 01, 2020 to March

31, 2021

During the year under review, following changes took place in the

composition of the Board of Directors of the Company:

S. | Name of the | Designation | Appointment Resignation/
No | Director Re-appointment and Change
in Designation of Director

1. | Sh. GJ Rao Nominee Appointment on June 23,
Director 2020

2. | Sh. Sumit Deb Nominee Cessation on September 01,
Director 2020

3. | Sh. Alok K Mehta Nominee Appointment on September
Director 01, 2020

4.  Sh. Siddharth Jain | Nominee Cessation on September 24,
Director 2020
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5. | Sh. N P | Nominee Appointment on September |
Ramakrishna Reddy | Director 24, 2020
6. | Sh. S Subba Rao Nominee Cessation on October 17,
i Director | 2020 |
7. | Sh. Sajal Mittra Nominee Appointment on October 24,
Director 2020 _
8. | Sh. D K Rai Nominee Cessation on February 24, |
- Director 2021 —
9. | Sh. V K Prajapati Nominee Appointment on February 24,
s e i Director | 2021 _—

12. Details of Appointment and cessation of Key Managerial Personnel
(KMP)

During the year under review following changes took place in the personnel
appointed/designated as KMP as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013:

1. Sh. S N Banerjea, Chief Executive Officer/KRCL resigned from the

post on March 16, 2021
2. Sh. T Muni Prasad, Chief Financial Officer/KRCL superannuated on

March 31, 2021 due to completion of Tenure
Details of KMPs as on March 31, 2021:
1. Sh. Trilok Garg, Company Secretary

However, after closure of FY 2020-21 Shri K Siva Prasad joined as whole
Time Managing Director of the Company on April 19, 2021 and the
Company has initiated the process for appointment of Chief Financial
Officer.

13. Particulars of Employees and related Disclosures

In terms of the provisions of section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 5(2) and Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014. During the year under Report, no
employee of the Company was drawing remuneration in excess of
Rs. 6,00,000/- per month.

14, Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments
During the year under review, the Company has not advanced any loans/

given guarantees/made investments under section 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013.
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15. Particulars or Contracts with Related Party Transactions

No Related Party Transactions was entered into by the Company during the
year as per the provisions of section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, the disclosure of Related Party Transactions as required under
Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC-2 is not

applicable.

16. Internal Financial Control
The Company has in place adequate internal control system which is

commensurate with its size, scale and complexities of its operations. The
Board of Directors actively reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of the
internal control systems and no reportable material weakness in the design

or operation were observed.

17. Statutory Auditors Report

M/s V K Khosla & Co., Chartered Accountants were appointed as Statutory
Auditors of the Company for FY 2020-21 by the office of the CAG. The report
of Statutory Auditors of the Company is received and circulated to the
shareholders along with notice of Annual General Meeting.

18. Secretarial Audit Report

The Company appointed Mr. Anil Anand (Company Secretary in Practice), as
Secretarial Auditor of the Company for FY 2020-21 pursuant to provisions of
Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Report of Secretarial Auditor for the Financial Year 2020-21 was
received and is annexed to this report as Annexure-I.

19. Explanations or comments by the Board on qualifications,
reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimer in the Auditor’s Report and
Secretarial Auditor’s report

Explanations or replies of the Board on qualifications/reservations/adverse
remarks, disclaimers in the Audit Report issued by the Statutory Auditor of
the Company is enclosed as Annexure-II, to Directors report.

20. Risk Management Policy

The Company got a mandate to execute the Obulavaripalle- Krishnapatnam
New BG Rail Line project on built, own, operate and transfer basis for a
period of 30 years or on attainment of NPV payback at a discount rate of
14% (whichever is earlier), under a concession agreement signed by the
Company with Ministry of Railways on 2374 November, 2007. Thus the rights
of the Company to earn revenue from operations of the project are protected
by the concession agreement.
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The volume and size of Company's earnings and profit largely depends on
the volume of traffic movement on the line, which is dependent on several
factors beyond the control of the Company i.e. economic conditions, import/
export policy of the Government, currency fluctuations, level of demand and
supply of various components of traffic moved on the line, etc. To combat
the risks of uncertainty in earnings of the Company the Company is moving
forward in the direction of capacity augmentation of the line, building strong
relationship with the stakeholders and customers, providing hassle free
services, reduction of O&M cost, etc.

The risk associated with the project assets of the Company of the
operational line are protected by obtaining the comprehensive insurance
policies for the assets and the risk associated with the assets under
construction are safeguarded by obtaining contractor’s all risk insurance

policy.

The management is of the view that a business of this size and nature must
be reviewed constantly to identify the risk factors and proper measures
should be adopted in time for risk mitigation, risk handling.

The Board keeps a close watch on the happenings in and outside the
Company that can have any major impact on the Company, its earnings and
its existence. Based on the above factors, the Board is of the opinion that, at
present various risks associated with the Company and its business are low
to moderate level.

21. Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company is committed to conduct its business in a socially responsible,
ethical and environmental friendly manner and to continuously work
towards improving quality of life of the communities. The Company has
constituted a CSR Committee, which is responsible for fulfilling the CSR
Objectives of the Company. No meeting of the Committee held during FY

2020-21.

Corporate Social Responsibility Policy

The Company has in place CSR Policy which lays down the philosophy and
approach towards CSR commitment. The annual report on CSR containing
particulars specified in Companies (CSR Policy) Rules 2014 including an
update on the CSR initiatives taken by the Company during the year in
given in Annexure III and forms integral part of this Report.
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22, Compliance with Secretarial Standards

The Board has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable Secretarial Standards and that such systems are

adequate and operating effectively.

23. Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance is about maximizing all stakeholders’ value legally,
ethically and sustainably. At KRCL the goal is to ensure fairness to all
stakeholders so as to enhance and retain their trust. The Company will
continue to uphold the true spirit of Corporate Governance and implement
the best governance practices. It lays emphasis on transparency,
accountability, ethical practices and professional management in its
activities.

24. Subsidiary Companies, Joint Venture or Associate Companies
During the year under review, there are no companies which has become/
ceased to become a Subsidiary/ Joint Ventures/ Associate Companies of

KRCL.

25. Deposits
During the year under review the Company has not accepted any deposits

from the public within the meaning of Section 73 of Companies Act, 2013.

26. Orders Passed by Regulator or Courts or Tribunals
There is no order passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting

the going concern status and Company’s operations.

27. Directors Responsibility

Your directors would like to inform that the Audited accounts containing the
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 are in full
conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and they
believe that the financial statements reflect fairly the form and substance of
transactions carried out during the year. The financial statements, audited
by the statutory auditors M/s V K Khosla & Co., Chartered Accountants,
reasonably present the Company’s financial condition and results of
operations, particularly considering the unique nature of operations of the
company.

In pursuance of section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors
hereby confirm that:
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(a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting
standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures;

(b) The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the
company for that period;

(¢) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act
for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and other irregularities;

(d) The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern
basis; and

(e) The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively.

28. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign

Exchange Earnings & Outgo:

a) The particulars required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with the rule 8(3)(A) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 regarding Energy Conservation do not apply.

b) The Company uses relevant technologies in carrying out its office
activities and maintenance of Rail line in compliance with all applicable
Guidelines issued by MoR.

c) During the year under review, your Company’s foreign exchange
earnings and outgo were NIL.

29. Disclosure as per the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
The Company has zero tolerance policy towards sexual harassment at the
workplace and strives for prevention, prohibition of sexual harassment at
workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules
there under. During the Financial Year 2020-21 the Company had no
women employee and has not received any complaint related to sexual

harassment.
11

026



KIIISHNA!’A']‘N!\M RMI.WJ’\‘:" CUMI‘ANY LII\"II'[']:'I)

30. Maintenance of Cost Records As Specified by the Central
Government under Sub-Section (1) Of Section 148 Of The Companies

Act, 2013

Maintenance of Cost Records under Section 148(1) of The Companies Act,
2013 is not applicable to the Company.

31. Details in respect of frauds reported by auditors under section
143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013

No fraud has been reported by the Auditors during the reporting period
under section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

32. Statement on Declaration Given By Independent Directors
under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Declaration Given by Independent Directors under Section 149(6) of the
Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company as the Company
does not have any Independent Director during the reporting period.

33.Company’s Policy On Directors’ Appointment And Remuneration
Including Criteria For Determining Qualifications, Positive Attributes,
Independence Of A Director And Other Matters Provided Under Sub-
Section (3) Of Section 178 the Companies Act, 2013.

Except One post of Whole Time Managing Director, all the Directors in the
BoD of the Company are representative Directors (part time non-executive)
nominated by its Shareholders under provisions of Shareholders and Share
Subscription Agreement. The Nominee Directors do not draw any
remuneration from KRCL.

For appointment of Managing Director all terms & conditions i.e. mandatory
education qualifications, relevant experience, positive attributes,
remuneration etc., are approved by the Board of Directors directly/on the
recommendations of the MD Selection Committee, as per requirements of
the Company. During the year the Company appointed a Whole Time
Managing Director is through proper selection process.

34. Filing of Statutory E-forms With Ministry of Corporate Affairs

During Period under review Company has filed all Statutory E-forms with
Registrar of Companies (Ministry of Corporate Affairs)

12
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35. Appreciation and Acknowledgement

Your Directors place on record their appreciation for the continued
assistance, valuable guidance and support rendered by the Ministry of
Railways (MoR), South Central Railway, Lender Banks, Auditors and
shareholders of the Company. The Directors look forward to your continued

support in future.

Your Directors also wish to place on record their sincere appreciation to the
commitment, involvement and dedication by Company’s staff in ensuring
high level of performance and growth of the Company.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

\or

Place: New Delhi K Siva Prasad Shilpi Agarwal
Date: August 26, 2021 Managing Director Director
(DIN: 09124374) (DIN: 08004390)
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CS ANIL ANAND

(Company Secretary in Practice)

FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31°" MARCH, 2021
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

KRISHNAPATNAM RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED
Amsri Faust Complex),

Door No D-9-1-164/A to 166,

5th Floor, Sarojini Devi Road

Secunderabad

Telangana-500003.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s. Krishnapatnam Railway company
Limited (CIN: U45200TG2006PLC051378) (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit
was conducted in a manner that provides us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we
hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial
year ended on 31% March, 2021 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also
that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by Company for the financial year ended on 31% March, 2021 according to the

provisions of;
(i)  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under,;

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA") and the rules made there
under: - Not Applicable

(i) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under: -
Not Applicable

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there
under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment: - Not Applicable

S = e eeee————,—
351 Prakash Mohalla, Near East of Kailash, New Delhi-110 065.

Email: csanilanand96@gmail.com Phone: +91 9873925927
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(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) :-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 ;- Not Applicable

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations 1992 ;- Not Applicable

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2009 ;- Not Applicable

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme
and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines 1999 ;- Not Applicable

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;- Not Applicable

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with client ;- Not Applicable

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Enquiry Shares)
Regulations, 2009 ;- Not Applicable and

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998 ;- Not Applicable

(vi) We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i)  Secretarial Standard issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
(i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with... Stock
Exchange(s) :- Not Applicable;

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Acts,
rules, regulations and guidelines mentioned above

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Directors as
per Companies Act, 2013. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took
place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the
Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance to the Directors for holding the
Board Meetings during the year, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarification on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

As per the minutes of the meeting duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of
the Board were unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded.
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We further report that
i.  there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size
and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws,
rules, regulations and guidelines, and
ii.  during the Audit period, there are no such specific events/actions having a major bearing
on the company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations,
guidelines, standards taken place.

The Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure A” and
forms an integral part of this report.

Digitally signed
ANIL by AMIL ANAND

Date: 2021.08.26
ANAN D 10:33:45 +05'30'

CS Anil Anand
ACS:10328, CP No: 11295

UDIN: A010328C000833876

Date: 26-August-2021
Place: New Delhi
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CS ANIL ANAND

(Company Secretary in Practice)

To,

ANNEXURE-A

The Members,

KRISHNAPATNAM RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED
Amsri Faust Complex),

Door No D-9-1-164/A to 168,

5th Floor, Sarojini Devi Road

Secunderabad

Telangana-500003.

Our Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records
based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretariat
records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are
reflected in Secretariat records. We believe that the process and practices we
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and
Books of Accounts of the Company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
Compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was
limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

6. The Secretariat Audit is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

ANIL | paroares
ANAND 75555 00
CS Anil Anand
ACS:10328, CP No: 11295
UDIN: A010328C000833876

Date: 26-August-2021
Place: New Delhi

351 Prakash Mohalla, Near East of Kailash, New Delhi-110 065.
Email: csanilanand96@gmail.com Phone: +91 9873925927
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KRISHNAPATNAM RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED

Regd. office: Ameri Faust Complex, Door No 9-1-164/A-168, 5" Floor, Sarojini Devi Road,
Secunderabad- 500003, Telangana, CIN NO. U45200TG2006PL.C051378

Auditor’s Comments for Financial Year 2020-21

Management Reply

Basis for Qualified Opinion:

The Company’s revenue are carried in the
statement of Profit & Loss a/c under note 19
(revenue from operations being Rs. 18319.29
lakhs). Monthly revenue bills / apportionment
sheet of revenue are received from SCR. All these
invoices are marked as “Provisional”. The
outcome of provisional invoicing are not known at
subsequent dates. Further, supporting documents
of the monthly revenue bills are not available. As
stated in note 19(i)(d), all supporting evidences
related to revenue booking are being controlled
and managed by the SCR only and not made
available for verification. The monthly revenue
statements are not checked and certified by the
company. Further, as referred by management of
the company vide Note 19(i)(c), the revenue is
provisional subject to Railway Board Decisions
w.r.t revenue on account of Apportioned Terminal
Cost from SCR. Thus, operating revenue could
not be verified. Financial impact, if any, cannot be
ascertained. Thus, the total Final Accounts are
drawn on the strength of provisional unverified
Revenue. Further, the company has material
uncertain tax positions including matter under
dispute which involves significant judgment to
determine the possible outcome of these disputes.

It is the practice of Railway Administration to
furnish such statements, viz., Revenue or
O&M or any other amount paid to be marked
as ‘Provisional’.

KRCL do not have any control over the
practices followed by Railway
Administration.

Revenue Statements are always checked by
KRCL officers at Secunderabad. Copies of all
revenue statements certified by CFO/KRCL
and Sr. Technical Manager/KRCL have been
furnished to Audit team.

Cilgitally signed by Siva

SIVA PRASAD spasao wastum
KA STU RI Date; 2021.08.27

15:23:20 40530
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Sl
No

_Aﬁittmr’s Comments for Financial Year 2020-21

Management Reply

Emphz;ﬁs of Matters

The balances relating to debtors and vendors are
subject to confirmation.

Balance Confirmation is not furnished by |
5 . ~ . |
SCR as per the Practice of Railways.

Further, Balance Confirmation of the major
creditor i.e., RVNL was furnished already.

The company is not charging GST in its revenue as
Company is of the view that the revenue that it is
getting from the Railways is not supplies but is
merely apportionment of carning (being return on
investment made by the SPV). Company has
received favourable order from CESTAT under
service tax regime on the issue. However, the
matter stands open in the GST regime and the
Company is in discussion with Railways who have
seeked clarification from the Finance Ministry..
Further, in GST returns filed by the company, only
RCM on advocate / arbitrary services is considered
in return. The company has accordingly, not
reflected any revenue in GST returns, either in Nil
Rated Supply / Zero Rated Supply or Exempt
Supply. The matter is under litigation since the
Service Tax Regime.

Further, the company has not provided for
liability to pay GST under reverse charge
mechanism in respect of 0&M costs as billed by
SCR as the company feels there is no supply of
service and accordingly they are not liable for
GST. This has resulted in understatement of
expenditure & over statement of profit by
Rs.3.86 Cr.

Revenue is collected by Indian Railway (IR).
IR is paying the necessary GST to the
Government of India. Hence, further, GST is
not to be paid by KRCL.

Amount of O&M Costs deducted from
Apportioned Revenue is in the nature of
allocation of cost between SCR and KRCL, as
such there is no service provided by SCR to
KRCL. SCR is performing operations and for
Maintenance is

carrying oul operations,
mandatory, so these (wo activilies are
complementary. Hence, Operations  and

Maintenance cannot be seen as two separate
activities, Due to operations, whatever
revenue is generated, GST is paid (o
Government by SCR.

Since there is no service, therefore no GST is
payable on O&M Costs.

Recognition & measurement of O & M expenses:

In the absence of availability of records/ documents
in support of the monthly O&M bills sent by SCR,
such bills are not checked/ certified by the
company. The same are taken as shared by SCR
Financial impact, if any, cannot be ascertained.

Detailed Monthly O&M Bills are duly
checked and verified by CFO/KRCL and Sr.
Technical Manager/KRCL.

Identifying and assessing the risk of material
misstatement  w.r.t _Capitalization of Intangible
Assels

In 2017, the detailed estimate submitted by
RVNL was Rs. 1850 Cr. (Hard Cost), which
was approved by the BoD.
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Intangible Assets capitalized during the year relates
to the construction of all three phases & related
ancillary constructions. The expenditure incurred by
the company for FY 2020-21 was Rs.29.33 Cr.
Cumulative cxpenditure up to 31.03.2020 was
Rs.2646.57 Crores and the cumulative expenditure
upto 31.03.2021 was Rs. 2675.90 crore. This
project started in 2008 with an estimated cost of
Rs.732 crore Thereafter, the project cost was
revised from time to time to Rs.1203 crore in 2011
and Rs.1866 Crore in 2016, It was then estimated
that the cost was likely to go up to Rs.2060 Crore. It
was to be completed in November 2018, but Phase
IT has become commercially operational on 3rd July
2019 only. The cumulative expenditure of this
project has gone up to Rs.2675.90 crore as on
31.03.2021.

In addition the company is still receiving
expenditure bills form RVNL and there are further
bills in the pipeline. Board is yet to approve
increased cost. Details of project cost were to be
made available by RVNI. which were to be verified
by Independent agency. RVNL have yet to give
project cost/completion/handover certificate to the
company.

Attention is drawn to the following Notes to the

Final Accounts:-

a) Note no 13.1.1 which refers to re-schedulement
of Secured Loans on account of extention of
COD. The same reflects on company’s
tightness in generating adequate revenue to
meet debt obligations.

26/08/2021.

It is a fact that the cost of the Project has |
increased to certain extent primarily due to
change in geology of two Tunnels mid-way of
the longest tunnel (7 Km. in length) while
excavation was continuing.

Due to which the progress of the work was
hindered in order to mitigate the problem in
respect of change in technology.

Further Change of the scope of the project
had also taken place in form of elimination of
LC Gates as directed by MoR. Due to which
47 RUBs needed to be constructed on high
embankments, which alone led to cost
escalation to the extent of over Rs. 400 Cr.

The project became operational on July 03,
2019, but a few ancillaries works being
completed. Due to this Construction Bills are
still received from RVNL. Approval for Rs.
2646.75 crore has been obtained from the 60"
BoD meeting held on 25/07/2020.

However, during the year 2020-21, the
company received construction expenditure
bills for an amount Rs. 2933 crore

(approximately) from RVNL and the bills are
still coming in. Since, the Board of Directors
in its 6lst BOD dt. 24.09.2020, approved
expenditure of Rs. 17.32 crore only for
construction of Two additional stations.
Capitalization of the excess expenditure of Rs
12.01 crore (approx.) as per bills submitted by
RVNL, in KRCL books of accounts during
FY 2020-21. Approval has been obtained
from the BoD in its 65th meeting held on

a) Company is duly servicing interest on
Banks Loan for past eight years without
any default, Repayment of Principal Loan
amount has also started from September
2019. Up to March 2021, the Company
paid Interest on Loan as well as
installments of Principal Loan without any
default.

b) Note-5.2 which refers to the fact that RVNL is | b) There is no clause in the existing
SIVAPRASAD . .. ... /g/-v
KASTURI
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d)

charging interest on delay in payment for
project expenditure inclusive of D& G charges
whereas as per management, construction
agreement does not contain any provision for
charging the interest on D&G charges.

Note No.5.4 of the final accounts according to
which D&G charges being capitalized and
amortized is subject to change based on
outcome of final of actual completion cost.

Note no-19(1)b)&(c) under Revenue from
Operations. The company’s claim relating to
(a) earning on length of about 14.45 Km
section from Krishnapatnam Railway and (b)
apportionment of Terminal costs. These issues
are now pending for Arbitration and Final
decision of Ministry of Railways is pending. So
Revenue is subject to these.

Note No. 34, where, in absence of any approval
from the board of the Company the figure for
Capital Commitment has not been estimated
and accordingly has not been shown under
Capital Commitment as on 31.03.2021.

Note No. 4.3 according to which Assets of
phase-1, phase-2 & phase-3 of the company are
not insured as on balance sheet date, as
required under the Loan Agreement dated 23rd
November, 2007,

Note no 21 (iii) & (iv) and as such Operation
Agreement is yet to be entered into with SCR
pertaining to operation of phase-IIT which is
function since 2nd march 2014 and Phase II
which is function since 3rd July 2019, Thus
accounting for of revenue and operation cost of
Phase-ITI between KRCL and SCR is being
made on the basis of Operation and
Maintenance Agreement for Phase-1. If the
terms of agreement change the related revenue
and operation cost will vary and the amount
unascertained.

Construction Agreement executed between
RVNL and KRCL, which prohibits RVNL

from  charging  interest on  D&G
outstanding Amount.
At the time of re-conciliation afier
completion of all balance works, this
issue/matter will be raised to RVNL.

c) At present RVNL is charging D&G

Charges in accordance with provisions of
Construction Agreement.
On Completion of work, final D&G
Charge will be calculated and actual impact
will be taken in Financial Statements.

d) Statement of fact.

e) Statement of fact,

f) The Company is in the process of obtaining
insurance for entire project assets.

g) O&M Agreement for the entire project is to
be concluded, the same is under
consideration of with SCR for all Phases.
The existing O&M Agreement is being
followed till the new Agrecment is signed.
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No

Auditor’s Comrﬁents for Financial Year
2020-21

Managemém Reply

Internal Financial Control

The operation of company’s business are solely
controlled by the South Central railway (SCR). All
supporting evidences related to revenue booking are
being controlled & managed by SCR only and not
made available for verification.

Every month reconciliation is being done with
the Traffic revenue Officer of SCR. RR wise
reconciliation is done every month by KRCL
officers in order to arrive at correct revenue of
the company. Also systematic records are
maintained.

2

There is no control over the revenue
apportionment of SCR as the revenue sheets are
sent by SCR to the company only on provisional
basis and collateral records neither supplied by the
SCR nor maintained by the company. As a result,
there is no basis to verify the same.

Comments are same as mentioned in [tem No.
1 of Internal Financial Control above.

There is no control over the operation &
maintenance (O&M) expense, overhead charges,
indirect cost etc. billed by the SCR and deducted
from revenue dues to the company.

The matter has been raised in the meeting
with South Central Railway and KRCL
officials and the same has been minuted in
meetings.

In respect of any kind of over-charging in
O&M Costs, Company is following up with
South Central Railway, after issuing letters
for the refund of the same.

Absence of Internal Financial Controls has been felt
in the booking of expenditure for the construction
of the project of the company. It is observed that
the bills for construction of the project by the
contractor (RVNL) were sent from time to time to
the company for payment, but such bills were only
Xerox copies and not the original ones.

It is the practice of RVNL to provide the
photocopy of monthly Construction Bills to
KRCL and RVNL is retaining the original
bills for their record.

Since contractor is primarily appointed by
RVNL therefore original bills are retained by
RVNL, as a proof of expenditure RVNL
submits copy of invoices to company.

As informed to us, there is no methodology on the
part of the management to ensure the up to date
progress of expenditure on construction projects,
including bills which are already in the pipeline and
also which are awaiting dispatch by the contractors
for the construction.

RVNL submits monthly/bimonthly bills of the
contractors for ongoing construction of the
project. Since, RVNL is an EPC Contractor,
KRCL does not have any indication on the
forthcoming / future construction bills.
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ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES- FY- 2020-21

Sr.
No.

Particulars

Remarks

A Brief outline of the Company’s
CSR policy, including overview of
projects or programs proposed to
be undertaken and a reference to
the weblink to the CSR policy and
project or programs.

The Corporate Social Responsibilig
(CSR) Policy of Krishnapatnam
Railway Company Limited (herein
after referred as KRCL) is issued
within the provisions of Companies
Act 2013, Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules
2014 and Schedule- VII. The scope of
this policy extends to activities as
stated under Schedule VII of the
Companies Act, 2013, as may be
amended from time to time. Weblink to
access CSR policy on Company’s
website: http://krcl.org.in/csr/

The Composition of the CSR

Committee

1. Sh. M. P. Singh

(Non Executive Director)
2. Sh. B.K. Reddy

(Non Executive Director)
3. Sh. V. K. Prajapati

(Non Executive Director)

"_Average net profit of the Company

for last three financial years.

Rs. 1736.22 Lakh

Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two
per cent. of the amount as in item
3 above).

Rs. 34.72 Lakh

financial year:
a) Total amount to be spent for
the financial year

b) Amount unspent, if any;

c) Manner in which the amount
spent during the financial year is
detailed below

Details of CSR spent during the |

Rs. 123.74 Lakh (i.e. Rs. 34.72 Lakh
for FY 2020-21, Rs. 83.22 Lakh for
FY 2019-20 and Rs. 5.80 Lakh for
FY 2018-19)

NIL

Detailed below

In case the company has failed to
spend the two per cent of the
average net profit of the last three
financial years or any part thereof,
the reasons for not spending the

amount in its Board report.

Not Applicable
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CSR Projects:

(Rs in Lakh)
S. | CSR Project Secto | State Project | Amount spent Cumulat | Direct or
No | or activity rin and wise on the Projects ive through
identified which | district | outlay | or Programs expendit | implementi
the of Direct Over | ures ng agency
proje | Project expenditu | - upto the
ctis | coverag re on the | hea | reportin
cover |e projects ds g period
ed or
. programs
1 Development | Educ | Muthu | Rs. Rs. NIL | Rs. Through
of a well ation | kur 15.60 5,60,203 15.60 CVR
equipped Mandal | Lakh Lakh Foundation
Library, A
Science Lab & District
Digital Lab at : SPSR
the CVR Nellore,
English A.P.
medium
School for the
students of
under
privileged /eco
nomically
weaker
sections
2 Providing Educ | SPSR Rs. Rs. NIL | Rs. Through
additional ation | Nellore, | 33.51 33,51,474 33.51 District
amenities and A.P. Lack Lakh Administrat
special ion
repairs of KAC
Govt. Junior
College at
Nellore
3 Donation to Citize | NA Rs. Rs. NA NA NA
PM CARES ns 84,62,323 84,62,323
Fund assist
ance
and
relief
in
Emer
gency

7. The implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy is in compliance with the
CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.

Sd/-
(M. P. Singh)

Member CSR Committee
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KRISHNAPATNAM RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED

Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2021

(2 in Lakhs)
Particulars 'Lo‘:e As at 31st March 2021 As at 31st March 2020
I. |ASSETS
1 |Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and equipment 3 253.57 279.15
(b) Other Intangible assets 4 2,63,856.89 2,70,499.80
(c) Intangible assets under development 5 - -
(d) Financial Assets 6
(i) Loans 6.1 1.50 1.50
(i) Others 6.2 2,069.20 1,856.37
(e) Deferred Tax Asset 15 8,039.07 2,312.71
(fy Other non-current assets T4 50.00 2,74,270.23 67.00 2,75,016.53
2 |Current assets
(a) Financial Assets 8
(i) Trade Receivables 8.1 5,210.65 4,517.13
(i) Cash and cash equivalents B.2 4,404.28 4,118.12
(iiiy Bank Balances other than (i) above 8.3 5,600.68 594545
(iv) Others 8.4 55.33 74.36
(b) Current Tax Assets (Net) 9 493 59 466.04
(c) Other current assets 10 7.23 15,771.76 90.58 16,211.68
Total Assets 2,90,041.99 2,90,228.21
Il. [EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 |Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 11 62,500.00 62,500.00
(b) Other Equity 12 (7.809.82) 54,680.18 2,871.88 65,371.88
2 |Liabilities
(i) |Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities 13
(i) Borrowing 131 92,716.06 99,165.87
(ii) Trade Payables 13.2
a) Total Qutstanding Due to Micro
enterprises and small enterprises
b} Total Qutstanding Due to
creditors other than Micro 129.12 249.39
enterprises and small enterprises | 13.2
(b) Deferred Tax Liability 15 - s
(c) Other Non-Current Liability 16 69.72 92,914.90 96.70 99,511.96
(i) |Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities 17
(i) Trade Payables 17.1
a) Total Outstanding Due to Micro
enterprises and small enterprises
b) Total Outstanding Due to
creditors other than Micro 1,790.07 476.05
enterprises and small enterprises
(i) Other financial liabilities 17.2 1,35,446.82 1,20,724.26
(b) Provisions 14 5,000.00 3,947 .37
(c) Other Current liability 18 200.02 196,69
(d) Current Tax Liability (Net) 9 - 1,42,436,91 - 1,25,344.37
Total Equity and Liabilities 2,90,041.99 2,90,228.21

Ill. | See accompanying notes to the financial statements (Note-1-46)

As per our Report of even date attached
For V. K. Khosla & Co.

Chartered Accountants
FRN : 002283N

Amit Khosla
Partner
M No. 095943

Place : New Delhi
Date : 26/08/2021

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
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K. Siva Prasad

Managing Director

DIN :09124374

Trilok Garg
Company Secretary
M No. 30019

UDIN' 21098943aAnAEDBI2S
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KRISHNAPATNAM RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED
Statement of Profit & Loss for the Year ended 31st March 2021

(T in Lakhs except EPS)

. For the year ended | For the year ended
FRIICHES Note No. | " 31stMarch 2021 | 31stMarch 2020
|. |Revenue :
Revenue from operations 19 21,219.09 42513.16
Il |Other income 20 594 .33 580.41
. Total Income (I + II) 21,813.42 43,093.57
IV. |Expenses:
Operation & Maintenance Expense 21 6,201.04 24,775.92
Employee benefits expenses 22 95.88 64.71
Finance costs 23 21,460.89 17,345.13
Depreciation and amortization 24 9,570.65 7,303.78
Other Expenses 25 893.02 825.91
Total Expenses (IV) 38,221.48 50,315.45
v z"r\tl))fiuﬂ.oss] Before exceptional items and Tax (llI (16,408.06) (7,221.88)
VI. |Exceptional items - =
VII. |Profit/(Loss) before tax (V - VI) (16,408.06) (7,221.88)
VIII. | Tax expense:
(1) Current tax
- For the year - -
- For earlier years (net) - (0.83)
(2) Deferred tax (net) 26 (5.726.36) (2,361.73)
Total Tax Expense (V) (5.726.38) (2,362.56)
Profit/(loss) for the period from continuing
IX operation (VI - VIll) (10,681.70) (4,859.32)
X |Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations
Xl |Tax Expense of discontinued operations - -
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations (after tax)
XN (X-XI)
XNl |Profit/(loss) for the period (IX+XI) (10,681.70) (4,859.32)
XIV |Other Comprehensive Income
A. (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit and i} _
loss
(ii) Income Tax relating to ltems that will not be - R
reclassified to profit and loss
B. (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit and loss - =
(i) Income Tax relating to Items that will be
reclassified to profit and loss
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (IX
XV |+X) (Comprehensive profit and other (10,681.70) (4,859.32)
comprehensive income for the period)
XVI |Earnings Per Equity Share:
(For Continuing Operation)
(1) Basic (Face Value of Share ¥ 10/-) (in T) 27 (1.71) (0.78)
{2) Diluted (Face Value of Share ¥ 10/-) (in 3) 27 (1.71) (0.78)
XVII [Earnings Per Equity Share:
(For Discontinuing Operation)
(1) Basic (Face Value of Share T 10/-) (in ¥) 27 - -
(2) Diluted (Face Value of Share % 10/-) (in ?) 27 - -
XVIII |Earnings Per Equity Share:
(For Continuing and Discontinuing Operation)
(1) Basic (Face Value of Share ¥ 10/-) (in ) 27 (1.71) (0.78)
(2) Diluted (Face Value of Share ¥ 10/-) (in ) 27 (1.71) (0.78)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements (Note-1-46)

ep-date attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors

As per our Report of &
3 /-‘
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K. Siva Prasad Shilpl Agarwal * .

Managing Director Director
- DIN :09124374 DIN :08004390
Amit Khosla

Partner
M No. 095943
Trilok Garg
Place : New Delhi Company Secretary
Date : 26/08/2021 M No. 30019
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KRISHNAPTNAM RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flow for the period ended 315t March 2021
— (% in Lakhs)
Fy EL
Particulars For the year ended 31at March 2021 | PP % vemy ended 31st
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit before taxation (16,408.06) (7.221.88)
Adjustment for :
Depreciation, amonization and impalimant 9.570.65 7,303.78
Interast Income (354.52) (359.38)
Interest Expanses on Bank Loan 840369 B8.270.25
Imlerest Expenses on RVMNL Bills 11,623.55 8.684.15
Unwinding of discount-receivable from SCR (212.83) {191.41)
Unwinding of discount-overhead cost payable 2213 27.70
Income from reversal of doferred Overhead costs payable {26,98) (26.98)
Interest on Provision for resurfacing 41151 3214
Operating Profit before operating capital changes (1 14,029.14 16,807,389
Adjustment for ;-
D A in Trade R
{Loans & Advances {693.52} i nany
Dacrease { (Increase) in Other Financial current Assets (22.81) {0.03)
Decrease | {Increase) in Other current Assels 8335 {76.45)
Decrease / (Increase) In Other Non Current Assets 2.00 23
{Decrease) / Increase in Non Current Trade Payables (142.40) (35.04)
(Decrease) [ Increase in Currant Trade Payables 1,314.02 156.14
(Decrease) / Increase in Other Financial Liability 13,378.685 27,146.99
(Decrease) / Incroase in Other Current Liability 333 (100.53)
{Dn 140 in nt Provision 641,12 641,12
{2) 14,564.14 2511446
Cash generated from operation {1+2) 28,593.28 41,921.85
Income Tax Paid (Met of Refund) {27.55) (422.07)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES {A) 28,565.73 41,499.78
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital Expendilure on Propary Plant Equipment and Intangible s 3
Assels, Including Capilal Advances (2,887:10) N7ATEH)
Increase in deposils having original maturity of more than three
months and other bank balances M (167.88)
Interest Income 396.16 21848
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES {B) (2,146.23) 17.025.11)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of Loan {5,108.10) (3,224 81)
Interest Expenses- Bank Loan {9.403.68) (11,061.12)
Interest Expanses- RVMNL {11,623.55) {11,074.39)
Dividend {including Dvidend Distribution Tax) paid
—
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ic) (26,133.34) (25,360.42)
NET INCREASE (Decrease) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT | (A+B+C) 286.16 (8B5.75)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT [OPENING) {0}y 4,118.12 5,003.87
Balances with banks-Current Account 18.12 3.87
Deposits vith Bank with less than 3 months maturity 410000 5,000.00
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT (CLOSING) (E} 4,404.28 4,118.12
Balances with banks-Current Account 4.28 18.12
Deposits with Bank wilh less than 3 months maturity 4,400.00 4,100.00
MET INCREASE (Decrease) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT |  (E-D) 286,16 (885.75)
Reconciliation of Liabilities arising from fi ing activities as on 31st March 2021 are as follows
Particulars Borrowings
Balance at 1st April, 2020 1,04,271.97
Cash flows:-
-Repayment 5,106.10
-Proceads 3
Non-Cash:-
- Accrued during the year
- Fair Value )
Balance at 31st March, 2021 99,165.87
Reconciliation of Liabilities arising from financing activities as on 31st March 2020 are as follows
Particulars Borrowings
Balance at 1st April, 2019 1,07,496.88
Cash flows:-
-Raepayment 3,224.91
-Proceeds -
Non-Cash:-
- Fair Value =
Balance at 31st March, 2020 1,04,271.97
As par our Report of even date attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors i
For V. K. Khosla & Co, T -
Chartered Accountanisees SIVA PRASAD :?\:\w:.:m "
FRN : 002283N - KASTURI Vg4t s
K. Siva Prasad Shilpd
Managing Director Directon $r
DIN 09124374 DIN 08004390

Paitner
M No. 095643

Place : New Delt
Diate - 26/08/2021

Company Secretary
M Mo, 30019
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
KRISHNAPATNAM RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED
Statement of changes in equity for the period ended 31st March 2021

A. Equity share capital

(X in Lakhs)
; Number of Share in
P I
articulars Likis Amount
Balance at April 1, 2019 6,250.00 6,250.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year
Issue of equity shares capital during the year
Balance at March 31, 2020 6,250.00 6,250.00
Changes in equity share capital during the period
Issue of equity shares capital during the period - -
Balance at March 31, 2021 6,250.00 6,250.00
B. Other Equity (% in Lakhs)
Reserve & Surplus
Particulars Total
Retained Earnings
Balance at April 1, 2019 7,731.20 7,731.20
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - s
Restated Balance as at April 1, 2019 7,731.20 7,731.20
Profit for the year (4,859.32) (4,859.32)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (net of income tax) - =
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (4,859.32) (4,859.32)
Dividends paid
Balance at March 31, 2020 2,871.88 2,871.88
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors A -
Restated Balance as at April 1, 2020 2,871.88 2,871.88
Profit for the year (10,681.70) (10,681.70)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (net of income tax) - =
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (10,681.70) (10,681.70)
Dividends paid
Balance at March 31, 2021 (7,809.82) (7,809.82)
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31st March 2021

Note: - 1 Corporate Information

Krishnapatnam Railway Company Limited (KRCL) is a public limited company domiciled and was incorporated in India on October 11, 2006 as a Special Purpose Vehicle
(SPV) for the purpose of constructing the Krishnapatnam-Obulavaripalle New Railway Line (Andhra Pradesh) Project The Company is a Joint Venture between Rail Vikas
Nigam Limiled (RVNL), Krishnapatnam Port Company Limited, National Mineral Development Corporation, Government of Andhra Pradesh, and Bramhani Industries
Limiled. The registered office of the company is located at Door no. 9-1-164/A to 166 5lh Floor Amsri Faust Complex Sarojini Devi Road, Secunderabad, Telangana

I'he Company has entered into a Concession Agreement wilh Ministry of Railways (MoR), Government of India dated 23rd November, 2007 in lerms of which the Ministry of
Railways (Concession Authorily) has authorized the Company (Concessionaire) to develop, finance, design, engineer, procure, construct, operale and maintain the Froject
Railway and to exercise and/or enjoy the rights, powers, benefils, privileges authorizations and entitlements upon ils completion. Further, in terms of the said agreement, the
Soulty Cenlral Railway (SCR) will lease the existing Land to the company for the purpose of the Projecl, lease renlal for which shall be as per the extant policy of the MoR as
revised from lime to lime and the new land acquired by it in lieu of a nominal Annual Lease renlal of * 1 as referred to in the Lease Deed forming part of the Corncession
Agreemenl. Further new Land acquisition will be done by KRCL (through SCR) and will remain the property of KRCL till the expiry of 30 year lease period or Net present
Value (NPV) payback equal to equity investment @14% whichever is earlier. In case the NPV payback is reached earlier than 30 years, lhe concession agreement would
stand terminated and the project line would be repossessed by railway

The Operation and Mainlenance of the Phase 1 project railway is being conducted by South Cenlral Railway (SCR) under its right, vide agreemenl dated 6th January, 2012
which is co-terminus with the Concession Agreement, entered into between the MoR and KRCL. Further, in terms of this agreement, SCR is to operate traffic (Passenger &
Freight), collect revenue, maintain the facility and is required to pass-on the apportioned revenue and operation & Maintenance cost lo Krishnapatnam Railway Company.
Limited (KRCL).

Phase-1 of the Project involving the laying of railway line of 24.5 Km from Krishnapatnam to Venkatachalam (as per concession agreement signed on 03-11-2007) has been
completed and commercial traffic is being operated on the same w.e.f from November 15th, 2008,

Phase-2 of the Project involving Lhe iaying of railway line of 93.0 Km from Venkatachalam to Obulavaripalle (as per concession agreement signed on 03-11-2007) has been
completed and commercial traffic is being operated on the same w.e.f from July 3rd, 2019

Phase-3 of the Project involving the doubling of the track laid down in phase 1 has been completed and commercial traffic is being operated on the same w.e.f, from 2nd
March 2014

After commissioning of the line belween OBVP and VJRN, certain ancillary works are under process as on date

I'he financial statemenls are aulhorised for issue in accordance with a resolulion of the board of directors on 26th August 2021
Nate: - 2 Basis of Preparation, Accounting policies and measurement methods

2.1 Statement of Compliance

The financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021 have been prepared in accordance wilh Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) notified under seclior
133 of the Companies Act 2013, as companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from lime to time
Assets and liabililies are classified belween current and non-current considering 12 months period as operating cycle.

2.2 Basis of Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and on an accrual basis, except for the following item Lhat have been measured at fair|

value as required by refevant ind-AS
(a) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer nole no. 6.2 and 13 2)

2,3 Use of estimates and judgment

The preparation of financial stalements in conformily with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabililies, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of financial statements and the reported amaount
of income and expenses. Examples of such estimates includes estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment . Actual results may differ from lhese estimales.

Estimales and underlying assumplions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Future results could differ due lo changes in these estimates and difference between lhe actual
result and the estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known /materialize

Al financial information presenled in Indian rupees and all values are rounded lo the nearest lakhs up to wo decimals excepl where otherwise slaled.

2.4 Statement of cash flow

Cash flows are reported using the indirect melhod, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is adjusled for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or
accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments, The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on {he
available information.

For the purposes of statement of cash flow , cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, cash at banks and demand deposits with banks, net of outstanding bank
ovardraflls thal are repayabie on demand are considered part of the Company's cash management system,

2.5 Functional and presentation currency

llems included in the financial slatements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates (i e, Functional Cuirrency)
The fi enis are presented in Indian rupees, which is the functional and presentation currency of lhe company.
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2.6 Property, plant and equipment
Afa) Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any Cost of assel includes the following

(i) Cost directly altributable to the acquisition of the assets
(i) Present value of the estimated costs of dismantiing & removing the items & restoring the site on which it is located if recognition criteria are met,
{b) Cost of replacement, major inspection, repair of significant parts are capitalized if the recognition criteria are met.

(¢)  Anitem of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected lo arise from continued use of assets. Any
gain or loss arising on disposal or relicement of an item of praperty, plant an equipment is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and Is recognised in statement of profit or loss.

B Depreciation
(a) Depreciation on Property, plant and Equipment is provided on pro-rata basis on written down value (WDV) on all assets on this basis of life provided by the Companies

Act 2013
(b) Each part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment Is depreciated separately if the cost of part is significant in relation to the total cost of the item and useful life of]
that part is different from the useful life of remaining asset.

The estimalted useful life of assets for significant items of property plant and equipment are as follows:

Particulars Useful Life (In Years)
Office Building 30
Furniture & Fixture 10
Office Equipment's 5
EDP Assets 3

(¢} Leasehold improvements are amortized over the period of lease from the month in which such improvements are capitalised or over the useful life as computed under
Companies Act 2013 whichever is lower,

(d) Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date, with the effect of change in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

2.7 Intangible Assets
Freight Sharing Right (Railway Line under SCA)

The company recognizes an intangible asset arising from a service concession arrangement when it has a right to charge for usage of the concession infrastructure. An
intangible asset received as consideration for providing construction or upgrade services in a service concession arrangement is measured at fair value on initial recognition
by reference to the fair value of the services provided. Subsequent to initial recognition, the intangible asset is measured at cost, which includes capitalized borrowing costs,
less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.

The estimated useful life of an intangible asset in a service concession arrangement is the period from when the company is able to charge the public for the use of the
infrastructure to the end of the concession period (i.e. 30 year of operation or Net present Value (NPV) payback equal to equity investment @ 14% whichever is earlier. ).

Freight sharing right is amortised using the straight line method on prorate basis from the date of addition or from the date when the right brought in te service to the expiry
of 30 year of operation or Net present Value (NPV) payback equal to equity investment @14% whichever is earlier,

Amortisation methods and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date, with the effect of change in estimate accounted for on a prospeclive basis.
The carrying value of intangible asset is reviewed for impairment annually or more often if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable.

2.8 Intangible Assets under development
Freight sharing right under development
Expenditure which can be directly identifiable & fair value adjustment of land related to the service concession arrangements are recognised to freight sharing right under
development
The following amounts are reduced from the intangible under development;

(a) Interest earned on the Mobilization Advances given in respect of the project execution,

(b) Amount received on sale of tender,
(c ) Interest received on FD created our of Borrowed fund, which was taken for exclusively project expenditure,

2.9 Provisions
Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of a pasl event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying eoonomic_ benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to
seltle the present obligation at the Balance sheet date. Provisions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date,
Provision which expected to be settled beyond 12 months are measured at the present value by using pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability, The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest EXPENSes.
In respect of Operation & Maintenance expenses through SCR, same are accounted for on the basis of information received from South Central Railway (SCR). Whenever|
such information is not received, same is accounted for on pro-rata estimated basis.
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2,10 Revenue Recognition

a) Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Revenue from contract with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to

which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services,

b} Revenue from Railway Operation
The operating income of the company is recognized on point in time as per the provisional figures advised by South Central Railways for the share of revenue due lo the

company from the operations of goods traffic.
Operating revenue and operation & maintenance cost of earlier years In respect of operation of goods trains are accounted for in the year of advice of provisional figures by|

the South Central Railways,

c) Construction Contract Revenue under SCA

Revenue related to construction or upgrade services under a service concession arrangement is recognized based on the stage of completion of the work performed, when
the outcome of construction contract can be measured reliably and where the oulcome of construction contract can not be measured reliably | revenue is recognised only to
the extent of contract cost incurred that is probable to be recoverable. Performarice abligation is measured by the company on the basis of inputs to the satisfaction of a
performance obligation { i.e. Input Method).

d) Other Revenue Recognition
Interest income is recognized on a lime proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the interest rate applicable using Effective Interast rate Method,

211 Leasing

i. As a Lessee

The Company Recognizes a right-to- use asset and a lease liabllity at the lease commencement date. The right of-use assel is initially measured al cost, which comprises
the initial amount of lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct cost incurred and an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which il is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-to-use assel is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-to-use-
assel or the end of the lease term. The estimatad useful life of the right-to-use assel is determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and eqguipment. In addition,
the right-to-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using Ihe effective interest method, It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments from a change in an
index or rate. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made ta the carrying amount of the right -of-use asset, or is recorded in the
profit and loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Company presents right-of-use asset that do nol meet the definition of Investment properly in the “Property plant and equipment” and lease liabilities in “other financial
liabilities” in the Balance Sheet.

Short term Lease and Leases of low value assets,
The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use asset and lease liabilities for short term leases that have lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low value

assels. The Company recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

ii. As A Lessor

When the Company acts as a lessor, it determines al lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an operating lease. To classify each lease, the Company,
makas an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers substantially all the risk and rewards incidental to the ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the case, then
the lease is a finance lease, if not then it is an operating lease. As part of the assessment, the Company considers certain indicators such as whether the lease is for the

major part of the economic life of the asset.
If an arrangement confains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS-115 "Revenue from contract with customers” to allocate the consideration in the

contract,

2,12 Impairment of non-financial assets

In accordance with Indian Accounting Standard-36 Impairment of Assets, the carrying amounts of Company's assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheel date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated as the higher of the net selling price or the value in
use. An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an assel or its cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount.

2.13 Borrowing Cost

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, are capitalised as part of the cost of such assels
lill such time the assels are subslantially ready for their intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of lime to get ready for its
intended use. All other borrowings costs are recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

2.14 Employee Benefits

Short Term Employee Benefils ) )
The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid for the services rendered are recognized as an expense during the period when the

employees render the services.

2,16 Taxes

a) Current income tax .
(I} Tax on income for the current year is determined on the basis of taxable income and tax credits computed in accordance with the provision of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

based on the expected outcome of the assessment /appeals.

(iiy Current income tax assets and liabilities for current and prior periods are measured al the amount expected to be recovered from or paid lo the taxation authorities,
liability for additional taxes if any, is provided / paid as and when assessments are completed,

(iii) Current tax related to OCI ltem are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCH).
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b) Deferred tax
(i) Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for temporary differences which is computed using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or

substantively enacted at the reporting date.

(ii) Deferred income tax asset are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carry forward of unused tax credils and unused tax losses can be ulilized.

(iif) The carrying amount of deferred income tax assels is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income lax asset to be utilized.

(iv) Deferred lax refated to OCI ltem are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).

Minimum Allernative Tax credit is recognized as an assel only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the company will pay normal income tax during the
specified period. Such asset is reviewed al each Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is wrilten down 1o the extent there is no longer a
convincing evidence lo the effect that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

2.16 Earnings Per Share

In determining basic earnings per share, the company considers the net profit altributable to equity shareholders. The number of shares used in computing basic earnings
per share is the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period. In determining diluted earnings per share, the net profit attributable to equity shareholders
and weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.17 Contingent Liabilities and contingent Assets
(a) Contingen Liabilities are disclosed in either of the following cases:

(i) A present obligation arising from a past event, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; or
(i) A reliable estimate of the present obligation cannot be made: or

{iii} A possible obligation, unless the probability of oulflow of resource is remote.
(b) Contingent assets is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

(c)  Contingent Liability and Provisions needed against Contingent Liability and Contingent Assets are reviewed at each Reporting date.

(d) Contingent Liability is net of estimated provisions considering possible outflow on settlement.
2.18 Non-derivative financial assets

The company recognizes a financial asset arising from a service concession arrangement when it has an unconditional contractual right to receive cash or another financial
asset from or al the direction of the grantor for the construction or upgrade services provided. Such financial assels are measured al fair value on initial recognition and
classified as loans and receivables, Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial assets are measured at amortized cost.

If the company is paid for the construction services partly by a financial assel and partly by an intangible asset, then each component of the consideration is accounted for|
separately and is recognized initially at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

2.19 Fair Value Measurement

Company measures financial instruments al fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:

* in the principal market for the asset or liability, or

* In the absence of a principal markel, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the company. The fair value of an assel or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the assel or fiability. assuming thal market participants act in their economic best interest. The company uses valuation techniques that
are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the

use of unobservable inputs.

Assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on
the lowest level input that is significant Lo the fair value measurement as a whole:

1- Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

2 -Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
3 -Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is signiicant to the tair value measurement 1s unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Comparny determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

At the reporting date, the Company analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be re-measured or re d as per the
accounting policies. For this analysis, the Company verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to

contracts and other relevant documents,

The Company also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable,

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or
liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

The fair value of an intangible asset received as consideration for providing construction services in a service concession arrangement is estimated by refc?rence to Ihe_fair
value of the construction services provided. When the company receives an intangible asset and a financial asset as consideration for providing construction services in a
service concession arrangement, the company estimates the fair value of intangible assets as the difference belween the fair value of the construction services provided and

the: fair value of the financial asset received.
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2,20 Dividend to equity holders
Dividend paid/payable shall be recognised in the year in which the related dividends are approved by shareholders or board of directors as appropriates.

2.21 Financial instruments:-
{a) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial Instruments recognized at its fair value plus or minus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial instruments.

(b) Subsequent measurement

Financial Assets

financial assets are classified in following categories:

(i) At Amortised Cost

A financial asset shall be measured at amorlised cost if both of the following conditions are met;

(a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and

{b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows thal are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate method less impairment if any. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the statement
of profit and loss.

(ii) At Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income

A tdebt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

- The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

« The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOC! category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value, Fair value movements are recognized in the
other comprehensive income (OC1), However, the company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On de-
recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned is recognised using the EIR method.

(iii) At Fair Value Through Profit and Loss
FVTPL is a residual category for financial Assets. Any financial assels, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is cl

as at FVTPL.

In addition, the company may elect to designate financial asset, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI eriteria, as at FVTPL. If doing so reduces or eliminates a
measurement or recognition inconsistency, The company has not designated any financial asset as at FVTPL.

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.

Financial liabilities

(i) Financial liabilities at Amortised Cost
Financial liabilities at amortised cost represented by trade and other payables, security deposits and retention money are initially recognized at fair value, and subsequently

carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

(ii) Financial liabilities at FVTPL
The company has not designated any financial liabilities at FVTPL.

(¢) Derecognition
Financial Asset

A financial assel (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized only when the conlractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expires or it transfers the financial assets and substantially all risks s and rewards of the ownership of the asset,

Financial Liability

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a Derecognition
of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respeclive carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.

(d) Impairment of financial assets:
Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) mode! for measurement and recognition of impairment loss. The Company follows' simplified approach’ for recognition of
jmpairment loss allowance on trade receivable, The application of simplified approach does not require the Company 1o track changes in cradit risk Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs al each reporting date, right from its initial recognition

Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with ils assels carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI debt instruments, The
impairment methodology applies on whether there has been significant increase in credit risk.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/expense in the statement of profit and loss.

2.22 Non-current Assets held for Sale
Mon-current assets are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction anfﬂ a sal_e is considered hignlly
probable. The sale is considered highly probable only when the asset or disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present condition, it is uniikely that the sale will
be withdrawn and sale |s expected within one year from the date of the classification. Disposal groups classified as held for sale are stated at the lower of carrying _arr?c_nlml
and fair value less costs to sell, Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortised once classified as held for sale. Assels and liabilities

classified as held for sale are presented separately in the balance sheet,
If the criteria stated by IND AS 105 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” are no lenger met, the disposal group ceases to be class_iﬁed as held as
held for sale. Non-current asset that ceases to be classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of (i) its carrying amount before the asset was classified as held for
sale ,adjusted for depreciation thal would have been recognised had that asset not been classified as held for sale, and (i) its recoverable amount at the date when the
disposal group ceases to be classified as held for sale,
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2,23 Standard/Amendments issued but not yet effective
MCA had issued the Indian Accounting Standards Amendments Rules, 2021 vide notification dated 18th June 2021.In the Indian Accounting Standards Amendments Rules,
2021, amendments has been made in following standards:-

1. First-time Adoplion of Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS-101)
2.Share-based Payment (Ind AS-102)

3. Business Combinations (Ind AS-103)

4. Insurance Contracls1 (Ind AS-104)

5. Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations (Ind As-105)
6.Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources (Ind AS-106)

7. Financial Instruments: Disclosures (Ind AS-107)

8, Financial Instruments (Ind AS-109)

9, Joint Arrangements (Ind AS-111)

10, Regulatory Deferral Accounts {Ind AS-114)

11. Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Ind AS-115)

12. Leases (Ind AS-116)

13. Presentation of Financial Statements (Ind AS-1)

14. Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors (Ind AS-8)
15, Income Taxes (Ind AS-12)

18, Property, Plant and Equipment (Ind AS-18)

17. Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (Ind AS-27)

18. Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (Ind AS-28)

19. Interim Financial Reporting (Ind AS-34)

20. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets (Ind AS-37)

21, Intangible Assets (Ind AS-38)

22, Investment Property (Ind As-40)

The effective dale of these amendments is annual periods beginning on or after 1st April 2021. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the amendments and has
not yet determined the impact on the financial statements.
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Note: - 3

Property, Plant and Equipment (% in Lakhs)
o Furniture & Office

Particulars Office Building Flidtire stililprerits EDP Assets Total

At 1 April 2019 456.74 0.26 0.43 1.12 458.55
Additions - 0.20 0.61 1.67 2.48
Disposals/Adjustments - - (0.27) (0.49) (0.76)
At 31 March 2020 456.74 0.46 0.77 2.30 460.27
Additions - - 2.25 0.38 2.63
Disposals/Adjustments E - (0.18) (0.60) (0.78)
At 31 March 2021 456.74 0.46 2.84 2.08 462.12

Depreciation and impairment

At 1 April 2019 150.36 0.16 0.28 1.08 151.88
Depreciation charge for the year 29.11 0.03 0.20 0.61 29,95
Impairment - B - = -
Disposals/Adjustments - - (0.26) (0.45) (0.71)
At 31 March 2020 179.47 0.19 0.22 1.24 181.12
Depreciation charge for the year 26.34 0.07 0.78 0.75 27.94
Impairment - - ¥ - -
Disposals/Adjustments - - (0.12) (0.39) (0.51)
At 31 March 2021 205.81 0.26 0.88 1.60 208.55
Net book value

At 31 March 2021 250.93 0.20 1.96 0.48 253.57
At 31 March 2020 277.27 0.27 0.55 1.06 279.15

Note 3.1 : The Company has purchased a property for the purpose of administration which is temporarily idle with carrying amount of ¥
250,93 Lakhs as at 31st March 2021 (as at 31 March 2020; ¥ 277.27 Lakhs).

Note 3.2 : Property Plant & Equipment with a carrying amount of ¥ 253.57 Lakhs as at 31st March 2021 (as at 31st March 2020: ¥
279.15 Lakhs) are charged with secure Company's loans. The property plant and equipment of ¥ 1.68 Lakhs are held in the name of
Employees.

Note: 3.3 : In line with the IND AS 101, The Company has restated the gross block of Property , Plant and Equipment by reducing
accumulated depreciation by ¥ 21.45 Lakhs
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Note: - 4

Other Intangible assets

(Tin Lakhs)

Particulars Revenu.e Sharing Total
Right

Cost or deemed cost
At 1 April 2019 16,771.57 15,771.57
Additions 2,64,657.29 2,64,657.29
Disposals/Adjustments
At 31 March 2020 2,80,428.86 2,80,428.86
Additions 2,899.80 2,899.80
Disposals/Adjustments
At 31 March 2021 2,83,328.66 2,83,328.66
Amortisation and impairment
At 1 April 2019 2,655.23 2,655.23
Amortisation for the year 7.273.83 7,273.83
Impairment - #
Disposals/Adjustments = -
At 31 March 2020 9,929.06 9,929.06
Amortisation for the year 9,542.71 9,542.71
Impairment - o
Disposals/Adjustments - &
At 31 March 2021 19,471.77 19,471.77

Net book value
At 31 March 2021 2,63,856.89 2,63,856.89

At 31 March 2020 2,70,499.80 2,70,499.80

Note 4.1 : Amortisation on other intangible assets are included in Note no. 24 of Depreciation and Amortisation.

Note 4.2 : All Intangible with a carrying amount of ¥ 2,63,856.89 Lakhs as at 31st March 2021 (as at 31st March 2020: ¥ 2,70,499 80
Lakhs) are charged to secure the Company's loans.

Note 4.3 : Assets of phase-1, phase-2 & phase-3 of the company are not insured as on balance sheet date, as required under the
Concession Agreement dated 23rd November, 2007,

Note 4.4 : In line with the IND AS 101, The Company has restated the Gross Block of Intangible Assets by reducing accumulated
depreciation by T 9,626.84 Lakhs.
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Note: - 5

Intangible Assets Under Development
! (¥ in Lakhs)

- Revenue sharing
Particulars right under Total
development

Cost or deemed cost

At 1 April 2019 2,42,373.15 2,42,373.15
Additions 22,284.14 22,284.14
Disposals/Adjustments (2,64,657.29) (2,64,657.29)
At 31 March 2020 - -
Additions z =

Disposals/Adjustments
At 31 March 2021 ” 5

Note 5.1 Title of Leasehold Land shown under the head Intangibles under development and Intangible Assets represents land acquired /
to be acquired is with South Central Railway and the company hold the leasehold rights on the Land till the period of Concession
Agreement i.e. 30 years or on to attainment of the Net Present Value (NPV) payback equal to equity investment @14% whichever is
earlier . In case the NPV payback is reached earlier than 30 years, the concession agreement would stand terminated and the project line
would be repossessed by railway.

The Leasehold Land acquired by KRCL (through SCR) will remain the property of KRCL till the period of Concession Agreement and
thereafter will revert to SCR since, the value of land will be recovered from SCR.

Note 5.2 Capitalised borrowing costs

Intangible includes expenditure on account of interest Payable to Rail Vikas Nigam Limited (Project Contractor), during the year ending
31st March 2021 is ¥ Nil (31 March 2020: ¥ 2390.24 Lakhs) during the period for delay in payment for project expenditure as calculated
by RVNL on balance outstanding in the books of accounts of RVNL inclusive of D&G Charges and as accepted by Company. Further,
RVNL has provided infrastructure and other indirect establishment facilities to KRCL for which no amount is charged by RVNL.

The amount of borrowing costs capitalised for loan taken from banks, during the year ended 31st March 2021 is ¥ Nil (31 March 2020 : ¥
2781.87 Lakhs). The rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation was the effective interest rate of the
specific borrowing.

During the FY 2020-21 the amount of borrowing cost capitalised are NIL as the project was operational from 3rd July 2019.

Note 5.3 Capitalization of interest earned on Fixed Deposits

Amount of ¥ Nil (31 march 2020 ¥ 106.95 Lakhs) towards Interest earned on Fixed Deposit out of borrowed fund which was taken for
project expenditure PH -1l has been reduced from Intangible Assets during the year ended 31st March 2020.

During the FY 2020-21 the amount reduced from Intangible assets are NIL as the project was operational from 3rd July 2019.

Note 5.4
Intangible Assets includes expenditure on account of Directional & General Charges (D&G charges) amounting to ¥ 232.07 Lakhs

(Previous Year ¥ 1297.87 Lakhs) as charged by RVNL (Project Contractor) during the period which is as per the clause no. 10.2 of
Construction Agreement dated 29th September 2011, is subject to change. Cumulative D&G Charges up to 31st March 2021 is ¥
17,589.21 Lakhs (Previous Year T 17,357.14 Lakhs) is subject to change. Break up of "D & G charges" included in intangible assets

during the period is as under;

(¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars (¥ in Lakhs). (T in Lakhs)
Year Ended 31.3.2021 Year Ended 31.3.2020
1, Civil Works 110.27 977.73
2. Signaling & Telecom 42.51 71.76
3. Electric Works 79.29 248.38
- Total 232.07 1297.87
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Note: - 6
Financial assets

Note: - 6.1
Loans
(T in Lakhs)
Partlctilars As at 31st March As at 31st March
2021 2020
Security Deposit-NSDL 1.50 1.50
Total 1.50 1.50
6.2 Other Financial Assets
(¥ in Lakhs)
i As at 31st March As at 31st March
Particul
AENMIGIE 2021 2020
At Amortised cost
Receivable from South Central Railways under Service
Concession Arrangement (Value of land) 205220 L
(Refer note-28)
Total 2,069.20 1,856.37
Note: -7
Other non-current assets
(¥ in Lakhs)
. As at 31st March As at 31st March
Particulars 2021 2020
a) Capital Advances
Advances towards Project Expenditure
- Mobilization and other Advance 50.00 65.00
b) Other than Capital Advances
Maintenance Charges Paid in Advance for Building - 2.00
Total 50.00 67.00
Note: - 8
Financial Assets - Current
8.1 Trade Receivables
(¥ in Lakhs)
. As at 31st March As at 31st March
Particulars 2021 2020
Trade Receivables
Unsecured, considered good
- Trade receivables 5,210.65 4,517.13
Total 5,210.65 4,517.13

Note 8.1.1 The trade receivable represents the amount receivable from the South Central Railways
(SCR) being the gross revenue apportioned and are non interest bearing. Since, the revenue
apportioned by the South Central Railways is on provisional basis and the final figures may vary, the
above trade receivables and their classification is subject to change. Further, the amount of
receivable being ¥ 5210.65/- lakhs (March 31st 2020 ¥ 4517.13/- Lakhs) is subject to confirmation by
the South Central Railways.

Note 8.1.2 Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 15 to 75 days.
Note 8.1.3 No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company

either severally or jointly with any other person. No any trade or other receivable are due from firm or
private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or member.
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Note: - 8.2
Cash and Cash Equivalent

(¥ in Lakhs)
¢ As at 31st March As at 31st March
Particulars 2021 2020

Balances with banks:
— On current account 4.28 18.12
— Deposits with original maturity of less than three 4.400.00 4,100.00
months
Total 4,404.28 4,118.12

Note 8.2.1 As at 31st March 2021 the company has availability of ¥ 803.12/- Lakhs (As at 31st March
2020, ¥ 803.12/- Lakhs) of undrawn committed borrowing facilities.

Note: - 8.3
Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash equivalent
(T in Lakhs)
Partculals As at 31st March As at 31st March
2021 2020
Balances with banks:
— Term Deposit in Schedule Bank (Maturity more than
3 Months but less than 12 months) §000.00 5200
- On Escrow account, Earmarked Balance 600.68 245,45
Total 5,600.68 5,945.45

Note 8.3.1 The Amount lying in Escrow Account can be used by company in compliance with terms
of Loan Agreement

8.4 Other Financial Assets-Current

(T in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March As at 31st March
2021 2020
a) Other Receivables
Receivable from Banks towards Interest 43.43 20.82
Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposits 11.90 53.54
Total 55.33 74.36
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Note: -9
Current Tax

(¥ in Lakhs)
2 As at 31st March As at 31st March
Particulars 2021 2020
Current Tax Assets
Advance Tax Paid / Tax Deducted at Source 493.59 466.04
Total 493.59 466.04
Current Tax Liability
Currant Year Tax - -
Tax Deducted at Source & Advance tax Paid “ -
Total - -
Note: - 10
Other current assets
(% in Lakhs)
2 As at 31st March As at 31st March
Particulars 2021 2020
a) Other than Capital Advances
Maintenance Charges Building Assets 2.00 2.92
Other Advances 5.156 0.07
b) Others
Prepaid Expenses 0.08 87.59
Total 7.23 90.58

Digitally signed by
SIVA PRASAD g prasap kastun /Q/
Date: 2021.08.26 —

KASTURI 17:10:00 +05'30" M ool

D35



D AW N =

Note: - 11
Equity Share capital

(T in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st March 2021 As at 31st March 2020
Authorized share capital
65,00,00,000 Equity Share of T 10 each 65,000.00 65,000.00
(March 31,2020: 65,00,00,000 Equity Share of ¥ 10 each)

65,000.00 65,000.00
Issued/Subscribed and Paid up Capital
62,50,00,000 Equity Share of Rs 10 each 62,500.00 62,500.00
(March 31,2020: 62,50,00,000 Equity Share of ¥ 10 each)

62,500.00 62,500.00
Reconciligtion of the number of equity shares and share capital
Particulars As at 31st March 2021 As at 31st March 2020

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
(in Lakhs) (in Lakhs) (in Lakhs) (in Lakhs)

Issued/Subscribed and Paid up equity Capital outstanding 6,250.00 62,500.00 6,250.00 62,500.00
at the beginning of the year
Add: Shares Issued during the year - 9

Issued/Subscribed and Paid up equity Capital
outstanding at the end of the year 6,250.00 62,500.00 6,250.00 62,500.00

Terms/Rights attached to Equity Shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of ¥ 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is
entitled to one vote per share and also to dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the board of directors is
subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
company after distributing all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held
by the shareholders.

Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares in the company

Name of the shareholder As at 31st March 2021 As at 31st March 2020

No. of Shares % holding in No. of Shares % holding in
(in Lakhs) the class (in Lakhs) the class

Rail Vikas Nigam Limited (RVNL) 311000  49.76% 3,110.00  49.76%
Krishnapatnam Port Company Ltd.(KPCL) 810.00 12.96% 810.00 12.96%
National Mineral Development Corporation (NMDC) 400.00 6.40% 400.00 6.40%
State of Andhra Pradesh (GOAP) 350.00 5.60% 350.00 5.60%
Bramhani Industries Limited (BIL) 330.00 5.28% 330.00 5.28%
Sagarmala Development Company Limited 1250.00  20.00% 1250.00 _ 20.00%
Total 6,250.00 100% 6,250.00 100%

Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash , bonus shares issued and shares bought
back during the year:-

Particul As at 31st March As at31st As at 31st March  As at 31st
RFRGMAS 2021 March 2020 2019 March 2018

- 2,300.00 =

Equity Shares issued for consideration other than cash E
Equity Shares issued as fully paid up bonus shares -
Equity Shares bought back -

- - 2,300.00 <
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Note: - 12

Other Equity
4 (Z in Lakhs)
; As at 31st March As at 31st March
Particul
articufars 2021 2020
Retained Earnings (Refer Note 12.1) (7,809.82) 2,871.88
Total (7,809.82) 2,871.88
Note 12.1 Retained Earnings
(¥ in Lakhs)
: As at 31st March As at 31st March
|
Particulars 2021 2020
Opening Balance 2,871.88 7,731.20
Add: Profit/(Loss) for the year (10,681.70) (4,859.32)
Total (7,809.82) 2,871.88
Note: - 13
Financial Liability-Non Current
13.1 Borrowings
(¥ in Lakhs)
. As at 31st March As at 31st March
Particulars 2021 2020
Secured- At Amortised Cost
Term Loans
From Banks 85,789.62 90,206.97
From Aditya Birla Finance Limited 13,376.25 14,065.00
Total 99,165.87 1,04,271.97
Less: Current Maturities of long term debt (Refer Note 17.2) (6,449.81) (5,106.10)
Total 92,716.06 99,165.87

Note 13.1.1 Summary of borrowing arrangement

i) A Term Loan of ¥ 93300 Lakh has been taken by the company from the Banks and ¥ 15000 Lakh from Aditya
Birla Finance Limited against the revised project cost under the common Loan agreement, out of which ¥ 92996.88
Lakh has been disbursed by the Bank and ¥ 14500 Lakh has been disbursed by Aditya Birla Finance Limited up to
31st March 2021. The term loan from Banks was initially sanctioned in 2013, wherein first repayment due date was
30-06-2017. Thereafter loan was rescheduled in 2007 and 2009, as per revised COD due date for payment of first
installment was 30-09-2019. Company has been regularly repaying installment of loan as per revised COD.
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Note 13.1.2 Terms of security for loan are as follows:
The Secured Obligations shall, to the satisfaction of the Secured Parties, be secured to the extent permitted under
the Concession Agreement by:-

a) a first mortgage and charge on all the Borrower's immovable properties, both present and future (save and
except Project Site);(see note-3 and 4)

b) a first charge on all the Borrower's tangible moveable assets, including movable plant and machinery,
machinery spares, tools and accessories, furniture, fixtures, vehicles and all other movable assets, both present
and future (save and except the Rolling Stocks);(see note-3)

c) a first charge on all bank accounts of the Borrower, including but not limited to the Trust and Retention Account
and the Retention Accounts, or any account in substitution thereof established and opened pursuant to the
provisions of the TRA Agreement or any of the Project Documents wherein all revenues, Drawdowns, Receivables
and other funds of the Borrower shall be deposited from time to time and all Permitted Investments or other
securities representing all amounts credited to the TRA Account;(see note-8.3)

d) a first charge on all Receivables (including profits of the Borrower after provisions for Tax and dividends (if any
as permitted under this Agreement)) of the Borrower pertaining to the Project; (see note-8.1)

e) a first charge on all intangibles of the Borrower including but not limited to goodwill, intellectual property rights,
undertakings, present and future; (see note-4)

f) a first charge on the uncalled capital of the Borrower;

g) a first charge/assignment of the security interest

(i) on all the rights, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Borrower in, to and under the
Project Documents (excluding the Concession Agreement); all as amended, varied or supplemented from time to
time; and

(ii) all the rights, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Borrower in, to and under any letter
of credit, guarantee including contractor guarantees, liquidated damages and performance bonds provided by any
party to the Project Documents (excluding the Concession Agreement);

Provided that the aforesaid, mortgages, charges, assignments and guarantees shall in all respects rank pari-passu
inter-se amongst the Lenders without any preference or priority to one over the other or others.

Note 13.1.3 Terms of Repayment

Banks and Aditya Birla Finance Limited
Term loan is repayable in 52 Quarterly installments commencing on 30th September 2019 and last installment

falls due on June 30, 2032, amount payable during next 12 months is 6.00% of total term loan.

Note 13.1.4 Interest Terms
The Applicable Interest rate is SBI Base rate plus spread of 1.5% for both Banks and Aditya Birla Finance Limited.
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13.2 Trade Payables

(¥ in Lakhs)
; As at 31st March As at 31st March
Particulars 2021 2020
At Amortised Cost
Overhead Cost Payable (SCR) 129.12 249.39
Total 129.12 249.39
Total Financial Liabilities 92,845.18 99,415.26

Trade payable represents Overhead cost payable (i.e. Salary for RPF, medical and personnel, accounts and
corresponding retirement benefits etc.) which are not payable to South Central Railway as it is deferred for first five
year of operation and same being payable by the company over a period of 10 years commencing from the 6th
year of operation as per the O&M agreement. In terms of clause 3.1.8 of the operations and maintenance
agreement.

Note: - 14
Provisions
(T in Lakhs)
2 As at 31st March As at 31st March
Particulars 2021 2020
Provisions for Re-surfacing Cost 5,000.00 3,947.37
Total _ 5,000.00 3,947.37

In terms of Concession agreement, there is an obligation on the Company to keep the project assets in working
condition, including making replacement, as per laid down standards of MOR, of all project assets whose codal
life expire during the concession period. Accordingly, Company has made estimated liability of ¥ 5,000 lakhs by
the end of financial year 2021 in respect of replacement obligations arising during the remaining concession
period as per requirement of Appendix D of the Ind AS 115. Based on said estimated liability, provision for period
ended 31st March 2021 of ¥ 641.12 lakhs (previous year ended 31st March 2020 ¥ 641.12 Lakhs) has been made
[Refer note no 25]. Interest cost of ¥ 411.51 lakhs for the period ended 31st March 2021 (Previous year ended 31st
March 2020 ¥ 312.14 ) have been charged to Statement of Profit and Loss [Refer note no 23].

SIVA PRASAD Siox prkssd kacrum Q/
KASTURI s o & 77

D39



Note: - 15
Deferred Tax

(% in Lakhs)
: As at 31st March As at 31st March
Particulars 2021 2020
Deferred tax liability 11,535.24 8,620.58
Deferred tax assets (19,574.31) (10,933.29)
Deferred tax liability (Net of deferred tax assets) (8,039.07) (2,312.71)
The balance comprises to temporary differences attributable to:
Deferred tax assets
Unused Tax Losses & Unabsorbed Depreciation 17,827.11 9,653.92
Provision for re-surfacing Cost 1,747.20 1,379.37
19,5674.31 10,933.29
Deferred tax liability
Property, Plant and Equipment & Intangible Assets 11,535.24 8,620.58
; 11,635.24 8,620.58
Deferred Tax Assets (Liability) 8,039.07 2,312.71
Note: - 16
Other Non current Liability
(¥ in Lakhs)
Particul As at 31st March As at 31st March
AricHians 2021 2020
a) Fair valuation adjustment-Financial Liabilities
Overhead Cost Payable 69.72 96.70
69.72 96.70

Total

It répresents unamortized portion of the difference between the fair value of financial Liabilities on initial

recognition and expenditure incurred.
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Note: - 17
Financial Liability-Current
17.1 Trade Payables

(T in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March As at 31st March
2021 2020
Overhead Cost Payable (SCR) [Refer Note 13.2] 34.87 28.90
O&M Expenses Payable (SCR) 1,755.20 447 .15
Total 1,790.07 476.05
17.2 Other Firiancial Liability (T in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March As at 31st March
2021 2020
Audit Fees Payable 3.35 3.43
Current Maturities of long term debt (Refer Note 13.1) 6,449.81 5,106.10
Rail Vikas Nigam Limited [Note 17.2.1] 1,28,755.74 1,15,411.38
Expenses Payable 75.24 153.82
Security Deposit 47.31 22.26
Earnest Money Deposit - 16.78
Term Loans
From Banks - Interest Payable on Loan
(Refer Note 13.1) 1as7 10:44
Total 1,35,446.82 1,20,724.26
Total Current Financial Liability 1,37,236.89 1,21,200.31

Note 17.2.1 Terms of Payment to RVNL

RVNL does not allow any credit period to company, In case of failure to make timely payment to RVNL, then the
Interest is payable at the SBI base rate plus one percent from the last date of the month in which expenditure is

incurred and charged up to the date of actual payment received from company.

Note: - 18
Other Current Liability
(R in Lakhs)
; As at 31st March As at 31st March
Particulars 2021 2020
Statutory liabilities
TDS payable 192.89 192.64
GST Payable 3.12 2.54
Labour Cess 3.67 1.33
Provident Fund payable 0.34 0.18
Total 200.02 196.69
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Note 19 : Revenue from Operation

(% in Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
Particul
articutars March 31st, 2021 March 31st, 2020
Revenue from Contract with Customer:
a.) Sale/Rendering of services 18,319.29 20,229.02
b.)Construction contract revenue under SCA (Refer Note 28) 2,899.80 22,284.14
Total 21,219.03 42,513.16

Note (i) : Operating Income:

a) After completion of the Phase-l of the project on 15th November 2008, same is being operated by South Central
Railway (SCR) and revenue is being collected by SCR which has been apportioned between the company and various
Zonal Railways from 15th November 2008 in terms of Operation and Maintenance Agreement dated 6th, January 2012
signed detailing the modalities of revenue and cost sharing between the company and SCR. Phase 3 of the project is being
operated from 2nd March 2014. Phase-Il of project is being operated from 3rd July 2019.

Revenue is based on the Calculation sheets received from SCR showing Apportioned Revenue and O&M expenses on
Provisional basis. Also the Figures intimated by SCR are provisional and Subject to Confirmation. Hence any Impact arising
out of Confirmation of the Figures will be accounted for in the year in which it is finalized.

b) Krishnapatnam Railway Company Limited (KRCL) is anticipating earnings on Length of about 14.45 Km section from
Krishnapatnam Railway Station to the Buffer of Port from South Central Railway and O&M Cost. Decision of Ministry of
Railway is pending. Hence, the revenue reported is subject to the same.

¢) KRCL has been earning revenue on account of Apportioned Terminal Cost from South Central Railway (SCR) from 11th
August 2017 onwards. The company has been claiming for the similar apportionment of Terminal Cost during the period of
operation from beginning i.e. for the period 15th November 2008 to 10th August 2017. But it has been able to get the
Apportioned Revenue from Railways for the said period so far, pending Railway Board decision which is not quantified yet.
Hence, the revenue reported is subject to the same.

d) Further all supporting evidences related to revenue bookings are being controlled and managed by SCR only and not
made available for verification
e) Also the Income pertaining to Phase-1, Phase -3 and Phase-2 is not made available for segregation.

Note 20 : Other Income

(T in Lakhs)
Particul For the year ended For the year ended
el March 31st, 2021 March 31st, 2020

Other Non Operating Income
Interest income on Bank FDR 354.52 359.36
Unwinding of discount on receivable from South Central Railways 212.83 191.41
under SCA

Income from reversal of deferred Overhead costs payable 26.98 26.98

Other Income - 2.66
Total 594.33 580.41
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Note 21 : Operation & Maintenance Expense (O&M Expenses)

(¥ in Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
|

Fartexks March 31st, 2021 March 31st, 2020
Operation & Maintenance Expenses 3,004.12 2,201.09
Overhead Cost 297.12 290.69
Construction Contract Cost under SCA 2,899.80 22,284.14
Total 6,201.04 24,775.92

Note (i) : Operation & Maintenance Expenses recognized in current year as intimated by South Central Railway are
provisional and subject to Confirmation. Hence, any impact arising on the confirmation of the figures will be accounted for in

the year in which it is finalized.

Note (ii) : Also, the O&M expenses pertaining to Phase 1, Phase 3 and Phase 2 can not be segregated
Note (iii) : Operation agreement pertaining to operation of phase 2 & 3 line is pending for finalization and signing.

Note (iv) Operation & Maintenance expenses of Phase 1, Phase 2 and Phase 3 are being accounted for in terms of the
Operations and Maintenance Agreement signed with South Central Railway for 24.50 Km Railway line from

Venkatachalam to Krishnapatnam for Phase 1.

Note (v) Operation & Maintenance expenses includes Lease Rent of ¥ 1 in accordance with terms of concession

agreement.

Note (vi) All supporting evidences related to O & M expenses incurred have been controlled and managed by SCR only

and not made available for verification.

Note 22 : Employee Benefit Expenses

(¥ in Lakhs)

Patiiculars For the year ended For the year ended
Wk March 31st, 2021 March 31st, 2020

Salary & Wages 94.63 63.49
Contribution to Provident and Other funds 1.25 1.22
Total 95.88 64.71
Note 23 : Finance Costs

(T in Lakhs)

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars March 31st, 2021

March 31st, 2020

Interest cost:

Interest Expenses on Bank Loan 9,403.69 8,279.25

Interest Expenses on RVNL Bills 11,623.55 8,684.15

Other borrowing cost:

Unwinding of discount on Overhead costs payable 2213 27.70

Unwinding of interest cost on Provision for Re-surfacing 411.51 312.14

Interest on Taxes 0.01 41.89
21,460.89 17,345.13

Total
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Note 24 : Depreciation and amortization

(¥ in Lakhs)
. ' For the year ended For the year ended
Paiciiars March 31st, 2021 March 31st, 2020
Depreciation on Property Plant and Equipment (Note 3) 27.94 29.95
Amortisation of Intangible Assets (Note 4) 9,542.71 7,273.83
Total 9,570.65 7,303.78
Note 25 : Other Expenses
(T in Lakhs)
Pailigiilars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31st, 2021 March 31st, 2020
(a) Legal & Professional Fees 105.67 48.42
(b) Travelling and Conveyance 14.53 17.46
(c) Payments to the Auditor as
(i) Auditor 1.70 1.84
(i) Taxation 0.71 1.18
(iii) Reimbursement of expenses 0.35 0.35
(iv) Other Certification - 0.24
(d) Telephone Charges 1.51 1.13
(e) Printing & Stationery 0.24 0.69
(f) Insurance Expenses 73.29 11.48
(g) Membership & Subscription Charges 1.00 -
(h) Repair & Maintenance 2.92 2.92
(i) Other Expenses 4.52 2.64
(j) Miscellaneous Expenses 1.33 -
(k) Medical expenses 0.51 0.24
(I) Provisions for Re-surfacing Cost 641.12 641.12
(m) ROC filing - 0.01 0.31
(n) Advertisement Expenses 3.09 2.67
(o) CSR Expenses 40.52 93.22
Total 893.02 825.91
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Note: - 26
Income Tax Expense

Note 26.1 Income tax recognised in profit and loss

(¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March As at 31st March
2021 2020

Current Income Tax:

Current Income Tax charge - =

Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous

year - (0.83)

Deferred tax:

In respect of the current year (5,726.36) (2,361.73)
Total (5,726.36) (2,362.56)
Note 26.2 Reconciliation between tax expense and the accounting profit :

(T in Lakhs)
. As at 31st March As at 31st March
Particulars 2021 2020
Accounting profit before tax from continuing
operations (16,408.06) (7,221.88)
Accounting profit before income tax (16,408.06) (7,221.88)
At India's statutory income tax rate of 34.944%
(31st March 2020: 34.944%) i
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible
Impact of IndAS transition Adjustment = -
Deferred Tax recognised (Reversed) (5,726.36) (2,361.73)
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of ) (0.83)
previous year ’
Expenses disallowed as per income tax act, 1961 - s
Total Tax expense (5,726.36) (2,362.56)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit (5.726.36) (2,362.56)
and loss (relating to continuing operations) T T
(5,726.36) (2,362.56)
0.00% 0.00%

Effective income tax rate

Note : Company is eligible for 80IA deduction in accordance with provisions of Income Tax Act 1961, therefore MAT credit is not

recognised in the financial statements.

Note 26.3 : Movement in Deferred Tax

Liability/(Assets) ( in Lakhs)
_ Property, Provision for
Particulars Elant a.nd Tax Losses Resurfacing Total
Intangible
i cost
Equipment
Opening balance as at 1st April 2019 1,095.28 - (1,046.26) 49.02
Charged/(credited) during the period
To Profit and Loss 7,525.30 (9,553.92) (333.11) (2,361.73)
To Other Comprehensive Income - - = i
Closing balance as at 31st March 2020 8,620.58 (9,553.92) (1,379.37) (2,312.71)
Charged/(credited) during the period
To Profit and Loss 2,914.66 (8,273.19) (367.83) (5,726.36)
To Other Comprehensive Income - = = -
Closing balance as at 31st March 2021 11,535.24 (17,827.11) (1,747.20) (8,039.07)
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Note: - 27
Earnings per share (EPS)

(¥ in Lakhs)
: ' Year ended 31st Year ended 31st
Particular
: ars March, 2021 March, 2020
(¥ per share) (T per share)
Basic EPS
From continuing operation (1.71) (0.78)
From discontinuing operation - -
Diluted EPS
From continuing operation (1.71) (0.78)

From discontinuing operation %

27.1 Basic Earning per Share

average number of equity
(T in Lakhs)

2 I Year ended 31st  Year ended 31st
[Fariculars March, 2021 March, 2020

Profit attributable to equity holders of the company:

Continuing operations (10,681.70) (4,859.32)
Discontinuing operations

Earnings used in calculation of Basic Earning Per (10,681.70) (4,859.32)
Share = S
Woeighted average number of ehares for the purpose 6.250 6.250

of basic earnings per share

27.2 Diluted Earning per Share

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in calculation of diluted earning per share:-
. (¥ in Lakhs)

' . Year ended 31st  Year ended 31st
rarsioulnm March, 2021 March, 2020

Profit attributable to equity
holders of the company:
Continuing operations
Discontinuing operations
Earnings used in calculation of diluted Earning Per (10,681.70) (4,859.32)
Share from continuing operations ' L

(10,681.70) (4,859.32)

The weighted number of equity shares for the purpose of diluted earning per share reconciles to the weighted
average number of equity shares used in calculation of basic earning per share as follows:

(% in Lakhs)
Particul ' Year ended 31st  Year ended 31st
TN March, 2021 March, 2020
Weighted average number of Equity shares used in 6,250 6.250

calculation of basic earnings per share
Effect of dilution:

Share Options

Weighted average number of Equity shares used in 6250 6250

calculation of diluted earnings per share
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KRISHNAPATNAM RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED

Note: 28 Service Concession arrangements

Public-to-privale service concession arrangements are recorded according to "Service Concession Arrangements” IND-AS-115.Appendix "D"  applies if:

a)  The Grantor controls or regulates which services the operator should provide with the infrastructure, to whom it must provide them, and at what price; and

by The grantor controls-through ownership, beneficial entitlement, or otherwise- any significant residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the term of the
arrangement,

If both of the above conditions are met simultaneously, an intangible asset is recognized to the extent that the operator receives the right to charge users of the public
service, provided thal these charges are conditional on the degree to which the service is used.

These intangible assels are initially recognized al cost, which is understood as the fair value of the service provided plus other direct costs direclly attributable 1o the
operation. They are then amortized over the term of the concession.

The KRCL{Company) has entered into a Concession Agreement with Ministry of Railways (MoR), Government of India dated 23rd Novermnber, 2007 in terms of which the
Ministry of Railways (Grantor) has authorized the Company (Operator) to develop, finance, design, engineer, procure, construct, operate and maintain the Project Railway
and lo exercise and/or enjoy the rights, powers, benefits, privileges authorizations and entitlements upon its completion. In terms of the said agreement KRCL has an
obligation to complete construction of the project railway and to keep the project assets in proper working condition including all projects assets whose lives have expired.

The concession period is determined with reference to attainment of NPV payback benchmark at the rate of return of 14%.The concession period shall be 30 years of
operation or till the NPV payback equal to equity investment |s reached, whichever is earlier, In case the NPV payback is reached earlier than 30 years, the concession
agreement would stand terminated and the project line would be re-possessed by railway.

At the end of concession period, the project assets shall be hand over by KRCL te MOR and KRCL shall be entitled to receive and MOR shall pay lo KRCL an amount
equal lo the value of new assets and additional facilities created by the KRCL net of depreciation and amortisation. The original existing assets leased to KRCL by MOR
shall revert back to MOR. The fresh land acquired by MOR and leased to KRCL shall also revert back to MOR on payment of an amount equal to the cost of acquisition.

In terms of the above agreement upon expiry of 30 years of operation the concession period shall be extended by an equal period of time which corresponds to the period
for which material disruption of operation and maintenance occurred during the concession period. However such extension will be limited to provision that if NPV payback
equal to equity investment is reached earlier then the period so extended , the concession period would stand terminated.

In case of material breach in terms of the agreement the MOR and KRCL both have the right to terminate the agreement if they are not able to cure the event of default in
accordance with such agreement,

The Operation and Maintenance of the project railway is being conducled by MOR through South Central Railway (SCR) under its right, vide agreement dated Gth January,
2012 which is co-terminus with the Concession Agreement, entered into between the MoR and KRCL. Further, in terms of this agreement, SCR is to operate traffic
(Passenger & Freight), collect revenue, maintain the facility and is required to pass-on the apportioned revenue and operation & Maintenance cost to Krishnapatnam
Raitway Company Limited (KRCL).

The above project is covered in three phase :

Phase-1 of the Project involving the laying of railway line of 24.5 Km from Krishnapatnam to Venkatachalam (as per concession agreement signed on 23-1 1-2007) has
been completed and commercial traffic is being operated on the same w.e.f from November 15th, 2008,

Phase-2 of the Project involving the laying of railway line of 93.0 Km from Venkatachalam to Obulavaripalle (as per concession agreement signed on 23-1 1-2007) has
been completed and commercial Iraffic is being operated on the same w.e.f from July 3rd, 2019,

Phase-3 of the Project invelving the doubling of the track laid down in phase 1 has been completed and commercial Iraffic is being operated on the same w.e.f. from 2nd
March 2014,

For the period ended 31st March 2021, the company has recognized revenue of ¥ 21,219.09 Lakhs (for the year ended 31st March 2020: ¥ 42,513.16 Lakhs), consisting
of ¥ 2,899.80 Lakhs (for the year ended : 31st March 2020: ¥ 22,284.14 Lakhs) on construction of intangible assets under service concession arrangement and ¥
18.319.29 Lakhs (for the year ended 31st March 2020; ¥ 20,229.02 Lakhs) towards sharing of apportioned earning from operation of Railway line under service concession
arrangement. Company has recognized Loss of T 16,408.06 Lakhs for the period ended 31st March 2021 (Loss for the year ended 31st March 2020: ¥ 7,221.88 Lakhs) ,
consisting of a nil profit on construction of intangible assets under service concession arrangement and a Loss of ¥ 16,408.06 Lakhs for the period ended 31st March 2021
(Loss for the year ended 31st March 2020; ¥ 7,221,88 Lakhs) towards sharing of apportioned earning from operation of railway line under service concession
arrangement. The revenue recognized in relation to construction of intangible assets under service concession arrangement in the period ended 31st March 2021
represents the fair value of services provided towards construction of intangible assets under service concession arrangement. The company has recognized receivable
under service concession arrangement measured at the fair value at 31st March 2021 of ¥ 2,069.20 Lakhs (at 315t March 2020 : ¥ 1,856,37 Lakhs), representing the
present value of fresh land acquired by MOR and leased to KRCL which is recoverable at the end of concession period from MOR of which ¥ 976,14 Lakhs (at 31st
March 2020: ¥ 763.31 Lakhs) represents accrued interest as al 31st March 2021, The company has recognized an intangible asset of ¥ 2 899.80 Lakhs (31st March 2020
¢ 264,667.29), of which ¥ 9.542.71 Lakhs {31st March 2020 : ¥ 7273.83) has been amortized during the period ended 31st March 2021, The intangible asset represents
the freight sharing rights to receive freight traffic earnings under service concession agreement.
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Mote 28.1: Disaggregation of Revenue

(T in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2021 March 2020
Construction Contract Revenue under
SCA . 2,899.80 22,284.14
Sale/Rendering of services 18,319.29 20,229,02
21,219.09 42,613.16
MNote 28.2: Contract balances (¥ in Lakhs)
. As at 31st As at 31st
Farticulais March 2021 March 2020
Trade receivables 5,210.65 451713
Contract assets % *
Contract liabilities » -
Note 28.3: Contract Assets (¥ in Lakhs)
As at 31st As at 31st
hartisyiars March 2021 March 2020
Contract Asset at the beginning of the
year -
Transfer from Contract Assel to Trade
Receivable and increase as a resull of
changes in measure of progress.
Contract Asset at the end of the year
Note 28.4: Contract Liabilities (T In Lakhs)
As at 31st As at 31st
ragicuars March 2021 March 2020

Contract Liabilities at the beginning of
the year

Transfer from Conltract Liabilities to
Revenue and increase as a result of
changes in measure of progress.

Contract Liabilities at the end of the
year

There was no revenue recognized in the current reporting period that related to performance obligations that were satisfied in a prior year.

Notes :29 Capital management

The company objective to manage ils capital in a manner to ensure and safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern so that company can continue to provide
maximum retuns to share holders and benefit to other stake holders,
Further, company manages its capital structure to make adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants, The
company maintain an optimal capital structure of Debt equily to reduce the cost of capital. The company debts includes long term debt | interest bearing loans and

borrowings from banks,

(T in Lakhs)

Particulars

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Borrowing (Note No, 13.1)
Net debt

Equity (Mote No. 11)
Other equity (Note No. 12)

Total equity

Net Debt to equity ratio

There are no changes made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31.03,.2021.

99, 165.67 1,04,271.97
99,165.87 1,04,271.97
62,500.00 62,500.00
(7.609.82) 2,871,688
54,690,118 66,371.88

6: 4 6: 4

Note: Total long term debt sanctioned by bank is ¥ 933 /- Crores and ¥ 150/- Crores from Aditya Birla Finance Limited , out of which ¥ 529,96/ Crores has been disbursed
by Banks and ¥ 145/- Crore is disbursed by Aditya Birla Finance Limited up to 31st March 2021.
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Note 30 :Fair Value measurements

(i) Financial Instruments by Category

(% in Lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
FVTPL FVTOCH Amortised Cost FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost
Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 521065 451713
{ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents - 4,404 28 = 411812
(iii) Bank Balances other than (i) above - 5,600.68 - 5,945.45
(iv) Loans 1.50 - - 1.50
(i} Receivable from railways under SCA - 2.089.20 * 1.856.37
{iv} Other Recaivabla - 55.33 - 7436
Total Financial Assets - 17,341.64 - - 16,512.93
Financial Liabilities
(i} Borrowings - 09,165.87 - 1.04,271.97
(i) Trade Payables
Cwver Head Cost Payables - 163.69 - & 278.29
Other Trade Payables - 1,755.20 - - 447 15
(i} Capital Creditors = 1.26,755.74 = = 1,15,411.38
(iv) Other payables - 241.27 - = 206.78
Total Financial Liabilities - 2,30,082.07 - - 2,20,615.57
(ii) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are measured at amortised cost:-
(T in Lakhs)
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Carrying Value Fair value Carrying Value Fair value
Financial Assets
Receivable from Railways under SCA 2,069.20 3,119.50 1,856,37 2,520
Total Financial Assets 2,069.20 3,119.50 1,866.37 2,620.91
Financial Liabilities
QOver Head Cost Payables 163.99 169.48 278.29 317.07
Total Financial Liabilities 163.99 169.48 278.29 317.07

i) The fare value of trade receivables, ofher trade payables, capital creditors, cash and cash equivalents and other shorl term trade receivables and payables are

considered to the same as their carrying values, due to short term nature.

iy Long term variable rate borrowings are evaluated by company on parameters such as interest rates, specific country risk factors and other risk factors, Based on this
evaluation the fair value of such payables are not materially different from their carrying amount.

iii} The fair value of receivables from railways under service concession arrangement and overhead cost payables were calculaled based on cash flows discounted using
current lending rate. They are classified as level 3 fair values in fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including counterparty credit risk.

Fair Value hierarchy as on 31-03-2021 (¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
Financial assets at Amortised Cost
Receivable from railways under SCA - & 3,119.50 3,119.50
. - 3,119.50 3,119.50
Fair Value hierarchy as on 31-03-2021 (T in Lakhs)
Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost
Over Head Cost Payable - - 169.48 169.48
B i 169.48 169.48
Fair Value hierarchy as on 31-03-2020 (T in Lakhs)
Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
Financial assets at Amortised Cost
Receivable from railways under SCA = - 2 520,01 2,620.91
- - 2.520.91 2,520.91
Fair Value hierarchy as on 31-03-2020 (T in Lakhs)
Particulars Level 1 Lavel 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost
Over Head Cost Payable - - 317.07 317.07
- - 317.07 317.07
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(iii) Financial risk management

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise Bank Borrowings and other Borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is 1o
finance the company's operations and to provide guarantees to support ils operation. The Company's principal financial assets include trade and other receivables and
cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

a) Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, Market risk comprises Interest
rate risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk includes loans and borrowing, deposits and other non derivative financial instruments.

b) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of fulure cash flows of a financial instruments will fluctuate because of change in market interest rate. The company exposure
to the risk of changes in market interest rate relates primarily to the company long term debl obligations with floating interest rate. The company manages its interest risk
in accordance with the companies policies and risk objective.

¢) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally
from the Company’s receivables from customers. The company is exposed to credit risk from its financial activilies including deposits with banks, financial institutions and
other financial instruments.

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed in accordance with the companies policy. Investment of surplus are made only with approved
counterparty on the basis of the financial quotes received from the counterparty.

d) Liquidity risk
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rest with the board of directors the company manages maintaining adequate banking facilities and reserves borrowing
facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and by matching the maturities of financial liabilities

The table below analyse the company's major financial liabilities i.e. Borrowings into relevant maturily groupings based on their contractual maturities

(2 in Lakhs)
Contractual Maturities of Financial Within Between Between Later than Total
Liabilities 1 Year 1to 2 Years 3 to & years 5 years
31st March 2021
Borrowings 6,449.81 15,049.56 20,424.41 57,242.09 99,165.87
31st March 2020
Borrowings 5,106.10 13,974.59 17,199.50 67,991.77 1,04,271.97
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Note : 31 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future, and the key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities with next financial year,

a) Useful lives of Intangibles

As described in note 2, company has estimated the useful live of inlangible assets (Intangible under service concession arrangement) is 30 years for amortisation of
intangible assets, As per service concession arrangement if NPV payback equal to equity investment @14% is reached earlier than 30 years, the concession agreement
would stand lerminated and the project line would be repossessed by raiway.

The financial impact of the above assessment may impact the amorlisation expenses in subsequent financial years.

b) Fair valuation measurement and valuation process

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities is measured using the valuation techniques including the DCF model, The inputs to these method are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values, Judgments include considerations of inputs
such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. See Note 30 for
further disclosures,

c) Taxes *

Deferred lax assels are recognized for unused tax losses and unabsorbed depreciation to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
losses can be ulilized significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax asset that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profit together with future tax planning strategies.

Note :32 Application of Ind AS on material items

The Prior Period Items and changes in accounting polices are applied retrospectively on account of materiality only in line with the provisions of Indian Accounting
Standards.

Note : 33 Construction Contracts
In terms of the disclosure required in Ind-AS 115 as notified in the companies (Accounting standard) rules 2015 as amended, the amount considered in the financial

statements up to the balance sheel date are as follows:-

(T in Lakhs)
Ouring the year  During the year
Particulars ended 31st ended 31st
March 2021 March 2020
Contract revenue recognised 2,899.80 22.284.14
Aggregate amount of costs incurred and recognized in 2,899.80 22,284.14
Note : 34 Contractual Commitments
The amount of contractual commitments in relation to project assets recognised as intangible assets is as under g
Particulars As at 31st March  As at 31st March
. 2021 2020

Capital commitment for project related assets is under review for March 2021 and March 2020

During the year no material foreseeable losses incurred on any Long term conlracts,
Total

Note : 35 Leases Disclosures

(i) Company has adopted the Ind AS-116 as per the requirement of the applicable financial reporting framework from the 01.04.2019. Company is having Nil impacl due to
adoption of the Ind AS-116 since, there is no leases transaction in the Company except the leased assets as per the concession agreement,

(i) South Central railway (lessor) has leased all the existing assels as per concession agreement and any land to be newly acquired for the project to comparny fLesset?J
for the duration of Concession Agreement i.e., 30 years or on to attainment of the Net Present Value (NPV) payback equal to equity investment @14% whichever is

aarlier.

Company shall pay to the lessor, an annual lease rentals @ ¥ 1/~ per annum in respect of the new land acquired by South Central Railway and for original land leased to
the company as per the extant policy MOR as revised from time to time. This lease rental shall be payable in advance in one single installiment payable in first week of
January,

During the period ended March 2021 , ¥ 1/- have been recognised as lease expense.
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Note 36 : Related Party Disclosures

36.1 Related Parties
A- Related Parties held equity of company

Name-

Relationship

As at 31st March 2021

As at 31 March, 2020

Number of shares

% holding in that

Number of shares

% holding in that

held class of shares held class of shares

Rail Vikas Nigam Limited Parties to joint venture agreement 31,10,00,000.00 49.76% 31,10,00,000.00 49.76%
[Enagatien Port Company | pties to joint venture agreement | 8,10,00,000.00 12.96%|  8,10,00,000.00 12.96%
Govt. of Andhra Pradesh Parties to joint venture agreement 3,50,00,000.00 5.60% 3,50,00,000.00 5.60%
National Mineral Development . 1ad o

; et Parties to joint venture agreement 4,00,00,000.00 6.40% 4,00,00,000.00 6.40%
Corporation Limited
Bramhani Industries Limited Parties to joint venture agreement 3,30,00,000.00 5.28% 3,30,00,000.00 5.28%
Sagarmala Development : G - "
Gompany Limited Parties to joint venture agreement 12,50,00,000.00 20.00% 12,50,00,000.00 20.00%
36.2 Key Managerial personnel of the entity
Name Position
Sushant Kumar Mishra Chairman
Kasturi Siva Prasad (from 19/04/2021) Managing Director
Venkata Subrahmanyam Dronamraju Director
Subbarao Sabbineni (upto 17/10/2020) Director
Sajal Mitra (from 24/10/2020) Director
Shilpi Agarwal Director
Dilip Kumar Gupta Director
Devendra Kumar Rai (upto 24/02/2021) Director
Vinay Kumar Prajapati (from 24/02/2021) Director
Mritunjay Pratap Singh Director
Sumit Deb (upto 01/09/2020) Director
Alok Kumar Mehta (from 01/09/2020) Director
Sidhartha Jain Fouzdar (upto 24/09/2020) Director
Nallamilli Pedaramakrishna Reddy (from 24/09/2020) |Director
Boyareddigari Kamalakarab Reddy Director
Gudena Jagannadha Rao (from 23/06/2020) Director
Trilok Garg Cs
Shanti Nath Banerjea (upto 16/03/2021) CEO
Muni Prasad Tripurasetty (upto 31/03/2021) CFO
36.3 Disclosure of transaction with related parties:
i) Joint Venture:

(% in Lakhs)

Transactions (¥ in Lakhs)

Outstanding Amount Payable/
(Receivable) (T in Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 31 Year ended 31 As at 31 As at 31
March 2021 March 2020 March 2021 March 2020
RVNL Unsecured Unsecured
Expenditure towards project (Net of interest on mobilisation advance & 3.032.68 18,149 42 1,28.755.74 1,15.411.38
sale of tender). \
Interest Charged by RVNL 10,378.17 10,143.95 - -
Travelling and Other expenses P . ; -
Payment for project expenditure (100.00) - = #
Advance for project expenditure given - (65.00) (50.00) (65.00)
15.00

Advance for project expenditure adjusted

Sub-contract work have been given to RVNL which has been made at the price prevalent in market.
The amount outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash, There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivable or payable.
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(ii) Compensation of key management personnel:
The remuneration of directors and other key management personnel during the year was as follows:

(T in Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
Rerticumes 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Short-term benefits 41.06 38.57
Contribution to Provident fund 1.18 1.10
42.24 39.67

Note 37 :
The confirmations from South Central Railway for Apportioned Revenue, O&M expenses, balance and statement of account with the company are yet to

be received,

Note 38 :
There are no reported Micro, Small and Medium enterprises as defined in the “The Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006" to whom

the company owes any dues.

Note 39: Contingent liability

a) Department has raised demand in respect of alleged offence of evasion of Service Tax amounting to ¥ 7.58 crore and ¥ 2.86 crore for financial year
2014-15 and 2015-16 respectively. Also department has raised demand of ¥ 2.95 crore for the F.Y. 2016-17 and 2017-18 (upto June'17), However
Company has not accepted the liability and has submitted its reply to department. Since the Company had earlier received favorable ruling from CESTAT,
it is confident that no additional liability will devolve on it. Further for the period F.Y. 2011-12 to F.Y. 2013-14, KRCL has received favorable order from
CESTAT for demand of ¥ 13.42 Crore. In case of similar companies on same matter department has moved to Hon'ble Supreme court in this case.

During the F.Y. 2019-20 Income Tax Department has moved to Hon'ble High Court of Delhi in respect of Tax demand of ¥ 5.17 Crore for A.Y. 2011-12,
Company has already received favorable order from ITAT in this case. Therefore, liability for this case has not been recorded in the books of Accounts,
Arbitration proceedings are going with MoR (Respondent).

b) During the previous years, company has received certain bills under protest from contractor pertaining to phase 1 on which a future liability may arise.
Financial impact of the same is not ascertainable at present.

c) Contingent liability in respect of departmental charges not claimed by RVNL @ 5% of project cost is estimated at ¥ 114.12 Crore.

Note 40 : Impairment of Assets
On the basis of review, the management is of the opinion that the economic performance of non financial assets of the Company is not lower than

expected and therefore there is no impairment of any assets as on the Balance Sheet date.
Note 41: Approval of financial statement
The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 26th August 2021.

Note 42 : CSR Expenditure
The company is required to spend ¥ 123.74 Lakhs on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) as follows:

(T in Lakhs)
Amount Required Actual Amount

Year to be Spent Spent Unspent
2020-21 34.72 123.74 (89.02)
2019-20 99.02 10.00 89.02
Total 133.74 133.74 -
Note 42.1: Details of Amount spent during the year is as follow:
Particulars Paid Yet to be paid Total
For the Year ended 31st March 2021
(i) Construction/Acquisition of any Asset = = -
(ii) On purpose other than (i) above
a) Contribution to four funds as mentioned in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013 2 - -
b) Contribution towards PM CARES Fund 84.62 - 84.62
c) Education 39.12 - 39.12
For the Year ended 31st March 2020
(i) ConstructionfAcquisition of any Asset # & =
(i) On purpose other than (i) above
a ) Education 10.00 89.02 99.02

Note 43 : Goods and Service Tax

Ministry of Railway is apportioning Revenue net of Goods and Services tax to company and GST on the same is deposited by Mlni'stry( of Railways, GST on
Operation Expenses Allocated by South Central Railways is not made, since in to view of management. There is no supply of service involved.

Digitally signed by

SIVA PRASAD sya prasap kASTUR o
ASTURI B oy
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Note 44: COVID-19 impacts on the Financial statements

The turbulence in the financial markets due to the COVID-19 pandemic has impacted the business during financial year 2020 however, it has not
materially impacted the Company’s financial statements at year ended 2021.

Since March 2021, the consequences of the COVID-19 outspread have disrupted the constructionfoperation work of the Company however Management
is having a reasonable assurance that these uncertainties do not cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The Company currently does not expect material changes to the profitability of future business plans which could impact recoverability of assets such as
intangible assets. Risk assessment on the business plans is carried out on a regular basis and an impairment review will be performed if conditions
suggest that such assets may be impaired.

Note 45 : Amendments not Effective on Balance Sheet Date

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), vide its notification dated March 24, 2021, amended Schedule 1l of the Companies Act, 2013 with effect from April 1,
2021. The changes are applicable for the financial year commencing from April 1, 2021 and are applicable to Financial statements issued in respect of
accounting years commencing on or after April 1, 2021. Therefore, related disclosures are not considered in these financial statements for the year ended

on March 31, 2021.

Note 46: Previous year figures has been rearranged, reclassified and regrouped to make them confirmatory with current year reported figures.

Digitally signed by

SIVA PRASAD sva prasaD KASTURI
KASTURI Date: 2021.08.26 m iy
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STATUTORY AUDIT REPORT




V. KHOSLA &CO. 16/14 , IInd Floor, W.E.A.,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Karol Bagh, New Delhi-110005.
Phones : 01145064894, 9810268150

Email: amit@vkkhoslaco.con

Independent Auditor’s Report ( Revised )

{0 'he Members of
Krishnapatnam Railway Company Limited,
New Delhi

Report on Standalone Indian Accounting Standards ( Ind AS) Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Financial statements of Krishnapatnam Railway Company Limited
(“tire Company”). which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, and the Statement of Profit &
| oss, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of changes in Equity for the year then ended, and includes a
surmary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on that date annexed thereto
(hereinafter referred to as Standalone Financial Statements’)..

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion and (o the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except [or the
Cllects of the matter deseribed in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid Financial
Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and
cive o true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of
e Act read with the Companies Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. (“Ind AS™) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India.

(1) In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021;
() In the case of the Statement of Profit & Loss, of the Profit/Loss for the year ended on that date;
(¢) Cash Ilow for the year ending 31.03.2021;

() Statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

I The Company’s revenue are carried in the statement of Profit & Loss a/c under note 19 (revenue from
operations being Rs. 18319.29 lakhs). Monthly revenue bills / apportionment sheet of revenue are
reccived from SCR. All these invoices are marked as “Provisional”. The oulcome of provisional
invoicing are not known at subsequent dates. Further, supporting documents of the monthly revenue
bills are not available. As stated in note 19(1)(d), all supporting evidences related to revenue booking are
being controlled and managed by the SCR only and not made available for verification. The monthly
revenue statements are not checked and certified by the company. Further. as referred by management ol
the company vide Note 19(i)(c), the revenue is provisional subject to Railway Board Decisions w.r.t
revenue on account of Apportioned Terminal Cost from SCR. Thus, operating revenue could not be
verified. Financial impact, if any, cannot be ascertained. Thus, the total Final Accounts are drawn on the




strength of provisional unverified Revenue. 'urther, the company has material uncertain tax positions
including matter under dispute which involves signilicant judgment Lo determine the possible outcome
ol these dispules.

Wwe conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the standards on auditing (SA™s)
Jpectlicd under seetion 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards arc further described in
(he Auditor’s responsibility for the audit of the linancial statements section of our report. We are independent ol
e company in accordance with code of ethics issued by institute of chartered accountants of india (1CAD)
ecther with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the linancial statements under the
arevision of the Act and the rules made thereunder, and we have (ulfilled our cthical responsibilitics in
decordance with these requirements and the ICADs code of ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sulficient and appropriate o provide a basis of our audit opinion on the Tinancial statements.

I niphasis of Matter
Desides. we draw attention to the following matters in the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements:.

| The balances relating to debtors and vendors are subject to confirmation.

O The company is not charging GST in its revenue as Company is of the view that the revenuce that it s
cetting from the Railways is not supplies but is merely apportionment ol carning (being return on
investment made by the SPV ). Company has received favourable order from CESTA'T under scrvice tax
reeime on the issue. However, the matter stands open in the GST regime and the Company is in
discussion with Railways who have seeked clarification from the Finance Ministry.. Further. in GS'I
returns filed by the company, only RCM on advocate / arbitrary services is considered in return. The
company has accordingly, not reflected any revenue in GST returns, either in Nil Rated Supply / Zcero
Ruted Supply or Exempt Supply. The matter is under litigation since the Service Tax Regime.

Purther. the company has not provided for liability to pay GST under reverse charge mechanism in
respect of O&M costs as billed by SCR as the company feels there is no supply of service and
accordingly they are not liable for GST. This has resulted in understatement of expenditure & over
statement of profit by Rs.3.86 Cr

i, Recognition & measurement of O & M expenses :
In the absence of availability of records/ documents in support ol the monthly O&M bills sent by SCR.
such bills are not checked/ certified by the company. The same are taken as shared by SCR Financial
mipact. ifany. cannot be ascertained.

1. Identifying and assessing the risk ol material misstatement w.r.t Capitalization of Intangible Asscls
Intangible Assets capitalized during the year relates to the construction ol all three phases & related
ancillary constructions. The expenditure incurred by the company for FY 2020-21 was Rs.29.33 Cr.
Cumulative expenditure up to 31.03.2020 was Rs.2646.57 Crores and the cumutative expenditure upto
31.03.2021 was Rs. 2675.90 crore. This project started in 2008 with an estimated cost ol Rs.732 crore
Iherealter. the project cost was revised from time to time to Rs.1203 crore in 2011 and Rs. 1866 Crore in
2016, It was then estimated that the cost was likely to go up to Rs.2060 Crore. [t was Lo be completed in
November 2018, but Phase 11 has become commercially operational on 3% July 2019 only. The
cumulative expenditure of this project has gone up to Rs.2675.90 crore as on 31.03.2021.




I addition the company is still receiving expenditure bills form RVNL and there are Turther bills in the
pipeline.Board is yet to approve increased cost. Details of project cosl werce to be made available by
RANL which were to be verified by Independent agency. RVNL have yet to give project
cost/'completion/handover certificate to the company.

. Attention is drawn (o the [ollowing Notes to the Final Accounts:-

a)

b)

d)

e~
—_

Note no 13.1.1 which refers o re-schedulement of Secured Loans on account ol extention ol COLD.
The same reflects on company’s tightness in generating adequate revenue o mect debt obligations.

Note-3.2 which refers to the fact that RVNL is charging interest on delay in payment for project
expenditure inclusive of D& G charges whereas as per management. construction agreement does
not contain any provision for charging the interest on D&G charges.

Note No.5.4 of the final accounts according to which D&G charges being capitalized and amortized
is subject to change based on outcome of final of actual completion cost.

Note no-19(1)(b)&(c) under Revenue from Operations. The company’s claim relating to (a) carning
on length of about 14.45 Km section from krishnapatnam Railway and (b) apportionment ol
I'erminal costs. These issues are now pending for Arbitration and Final decision ol Ministry ol
Railwavs is pending. So Revenue is subject to these.

Note No. 34 . where. in absence of any approval from the board of the Company the ligure for
Capital Commitment has not been estimated and accordingly has not been shown under Capital
Commitment as on 31.03.2021.

Note No. 4.3 according to which Assets ol phase-1. phase-2 & phase-3 ol the company are nol
insured as on balance sheet date, as required under the Loan Agreement.

Note no 21 (i) & (iv) and as such Operation Agreement is yet to be entered into with SCR
pertaining to operation of phase -11I which is functional since 2" march 2014 and Phase 11 which is
lunctional since 3™ July 2019. Thus accounting of revenue and operation cost of Phase-111 between
KRCL. and SCR is being made on the basis of Operation and Maintenance Agreement for Phasc-1. 1t
the terms of agreement change the related revenue and operation cost will vary and the amount
unascertained.

Reasons for Revised Audit Report

1 he Audit

Report has been revised on the basis of observations made in the supplementary audit conducted by

e C&AG and 1o correct some typographic errors and this supersedes earlier report dated 20.08.2021

ey Audit Matters

Koy audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most signilicance in our audit of
e financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context ol our audit ol the
fancial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.




ed on e circamstances and facts of the company and the audit. we have determined that there are no key
AU it matiers L communicate in the report.

talormation Other Than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thercon

I'he Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
imlormation comprises the information included in the management discussion and analysis, board’s report
inctuding annexure to board’s report. business responsibility report. corporate governance and sharcholder’s
Ilormation. but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thercon.

[ connection with our audit of the financial statements. our respensibility is 1o read the other information and.
in doing so. consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent wih the Financial Statements or
our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

{1 ased on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement ol this other

nformation: we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Minagement’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

[l Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) ol the Companies Act.
2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these standalonc [inancial statements that
oive u true and fair view of the financial position, {inancial performance, changes in Equily and cash lows ol
e Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Aecounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies Indian Accounting

Stmdards ) Rules. 2013 as amended (rom time to time.

['his responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
ol the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irrceularities: selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judements and estimates that
e reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal linancial
controls. that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records.
relevant Lo the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and
(i1 view and are Iree from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In ~reparing the linancial statements, Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the company’s ability o
cortinue as a going concern, disclosing. as applicable, matter relating to going concern and using the going
corcern basis of accounting unless the Board Director either intended to liquidate the company or cease
aperations. or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

[he Board of Director are also responsible for overseeing the company’s {inancial reporting process




Auditor’s Responsibility

Our objectives are o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are Irec
(ro 1 material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantec that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise fron
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
o infTuence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial stalements.

W conducled our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specificd under Section 143(10) of the
Ac¢ . Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit (o obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. As the audit
was conducted distantly due to lockdown situation on account of Covid-19 pandemic, due diligence was curricd
oul by us in obtaining the audit evidence. A few alternate audit procedures were adopted while carrying out the
audit. However, external confirmations could not be obtained on account of the lockdown situation cverywhere.
The reasonable assurance drawn, however, is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect material misstatement when it exists.

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
(he accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements .

W believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
aucit opinion on the Standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Renort on Other Legal and regulatory Requirements
l. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™) issucd by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure

A” a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable

2. As required by Section 143(5) of the Act we give in the “Annexure-B”, a statement on the matters
specified in the directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, and in our opinion no
action is required to be taken thereon and there is no impact on the accounts and financial statements ol
the company.

()

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

1) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belie!
were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
appears {rom our examination of those books

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit & Loss and also Statement of changes in cquity and the
Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.




J) in our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS Financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules.
2014:

¢) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2021 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Companies Act 2013.

) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure C”.

o) With respect to other matters to be included in the auditor’s report in accordance with the requirements
of Section 197(16) of the act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information & according to the explanation given to us, the
remuneration paid by the company to its director during the year is in accordance with the provision ol
Scction 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i, The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its [inancial position in its
financial statements
i. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.
i. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.
For V.K.Khosla& Co.

w. Chartered Accountants

[FRN: 002283N

- (Whela

(Amit Khosla)
FCA. Partner
Membership No.:095943

Place: New Dethi
Date: 27-09-2021
UDIN: 21095943AAAAFD3844

NEW DELHI _;
\
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“unnesunre A” o the Independent Auditors® Report ( Revised )
e Annesare relerred o in our Independent Auditors™ Report to the members ol the Company on the
standalone Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 March 2021, we report that:

l)

~—

(1) The Company has maintained proper records showing  full particulars, — including
(uantitative details and situation ol fixed assels.

() The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management in the phased manner. designed
(o cover all the items over a period of three years. which in our opinion. is reasonable having regard to
the size ol the company and nature ol its business. Pursuant to the program, a portion ol the lixed asset
has been physically verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies beltween
the books records and the physical fixed assets have been noticed.

(¢) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis ol our examination ol the
records of the company, the title deeds of the two immovable properties owned by the Company as on
31.03.2021 are held in the name of the company. For leasehold land. the title deeds are held in the name
ol South Central Railway and leasehold rights are in the name of the Company as per Lease Decd
appended in Concession Agreement.

(a) No [nventory is being held by the Company
(b) Paragraph 2(b) of the Order is not applicable to the company .
(¢) Records of inventory are not maintained as there is no inventory held by the Company .

The Company has not granted loans from companies, Firms or others partics covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us. the company has not
aranted any loans or provided any guarantee or security to the parties covered under section 185 and 186
ol the companies act, 2013 except, its own term loan and in respect of investments made or loans o

puarantee or security provided to parties covered under section 186 of the act.

I'he company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the dircctions issued by the
Reserve Bank of India and the provision ol the sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provision ol the
act and the companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014 with regard to the deposits accepted [rom the

publi¢ are not applicable.

Ihe maintenance ol cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under section TH8(1
of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the company. Thus. reporting

under clause 3(vi) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(1) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis ot our examination of the
books of accounts. and records. the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues  including provident fund, income tax, sales tax, service tax. duty of customs. value
added tax. cess and other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. According to the infornation
and explanations given to us, only undisputed amounts payable in respect of above were in arrcars as al
March 31. 2021 is of Labour cess of Rs. 21.301/- for a period of more than six months from the date

they became payable.
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no dues of income tax, sales tax, service
tax. duty ol customs. duty ot excise, value added tax outstanding on account of any dispute.

(v) According Lo the information and explanations given to us the following service tax, sales tax and
tieome tax dues have not been deposited on March 31. 2021 with the appropriate authorities on account

ol dispute:

| Naine of Statute Natu?if Dues___ _Amﬂ?(inm Related Period Pending Forim_
Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax | 7.58 Crore FY 2014-15 CESTAT o

| Finance Act, 1994 | Service Tax 2.86Crore | FY2015-16 CESTAT B
finance Act, 1994 J Service Tax | 2.95 Crore FY 2016-17 & FY CESTAT )

2017-18 {upto june
B 5 | . 2018) -

. income Tax Act, | Income tax | 5.17 Crore FY 2011-12 High Court Delhi

1961 [

8} The Company has not defaulted in any repayment of loans either from financial institution or from
government and has not issued any debentures during the year.

Y1 Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by  the
management. the company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
meluding debt instruments and term Loans. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the Order are
notapplicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

vig ased upon - the audit procedure performed and information and explanations given to us by the
Hidagement. we report that no material fraud on or by the company or on the company by its officers or
ciployees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management. the managerial remuneration has heen paid or provided in accordance with the requisite
approval mandated by the provision of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act 2013,

1) I our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provision of clause 4 (xii) of Order

are not applicable to the Company.

15) I our opinion. all transaction with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of
Comparnics Act. 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statement as required by the

\

applicable accounting standards,

P Bused upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of share or fully
=

or partly convertible debenture during the year under review. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3
(x1v) ol the Order are not applicable to the Company and not commented upon.




t5) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with director or person
connected with him. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company and not commented upon.

16) hn our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provision of clause 3 (xvi)of the order are not applicable to the
company and not commented upon.

For V.K.Khosla& Co.
Chartered Accountants

~ FRN:002283N

Place: New Delhi

_UDlN: 21095943AAAAFD3844

s FCA, Partner
Membership No.:095943
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sanexure =13 to the Independent Auditors’ Report ( Revised )

1y voAuditor’s Report for Directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under
ciiou 149(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) of Krishnapatnam Railway Company Limited,

LA

Wath regurd to the Statutory Auditor’s Report for Directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of
tindia under Section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™), on the basis of our checks we consider it
appropriate and according to the information and explanation given to us during the course of our audit of
scrisnnapatiaom Railway Company Limited for the financial year 2020-21, we report that:

- Lirections u/s 143(3) of the Companies | Auditor’s reply on action taken on | Impact on

CAct 2013 | the directions Financial
. _ statement
a) | Whether the company has system in place to The company has maintained the accounts in | Nil
process all the accounting transactions through IT | [T System. The maintenance of the accounts
system? I ves. the implications of processing of services and preparation of balance sheet as

accounting transactions outside 1T system on the per IND AS is provided by outsourced firm
fatearity ol the accounts along with the financial M/s UCC & Associates LLP. According to
anplications, il"any, may be stated. the information and explanations given to us,
! no accounting transactions have been
processed outside the IT System. Therefore,
. . B B | no financial implications are there
| Whether there 1s any restructuring ol an existing Based on the information and explanation Nil
Lo or cases ol waiver/write off of furnished to us by the management, there
L debts/loans/interest ete. made by a lender to the WEEES S“C.h restructuring of Loans S
' Pl waivers/ written off of debts / loans/ interest,
company due to the company's inability to repay .
e foan? (T he 1 " ) b etc. made by the company during the
Sfoan? 11 yes, Inanciz sact (g - .
Lhe o yes, the Tinancila lmpact tnay be financial year 2020-21.
stated. Whether such cases are properly accounted
lor? (In case. lender is a Government company,
then this dirvection Is also applicable for statutory |

Caaditor of fender company).

c) | Whether Tunds (grants/subsidy ete.) | Based on the information and explanation Nil
received/receivable for specitic schemes from furnished to us by the management, there
[ Central/State Governmenl or its agencies were were no such funds received/receivable for
| properly accounted for/utilized as per its term and | specific schemes from central/ state agencies
| conditions? List the cases ol deviation, by the company during F.Y. 2020-21

For V.K.Khosla& Co.
't\o% rtered Accountants

Ptace: New Delhi
Date: 27-09-2021
UDIN: 21095943AAAAFD3844 8#hit Khosla)
. CA, Partner
~ Membership No.:095943




Ciiexare €7 o the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Standalone
Cianicind Statements of M/s Krishnapatnam Railway Company Limited ( Revised )

feport on the taternal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
<wlipunies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

hive audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s Krishnapatnam Railway
wonnpaay Limited (tthe Company™) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial

datements ol the Company for the year ended on that date.

Wihanagement’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

Hie Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
siernai control over Financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
tiicrnad control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Ovet Financial Reporting issued by
diwe dnstiwite o Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities  include  the design, implementation and
ndntenance ol adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
vonduct ol its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection ol Trauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
retiable financial information. as requived under the Companies Act, 2013.

cathieors” Respousibility

Coar respansibility is Lo express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based
woar audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Vver Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls. both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
secotintanls of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
iz and pertorme the audit Lo obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over

Diial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all materialrespects.

Curauditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
atentover financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk .
s aterial weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
ased o e ussessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s Judgement, including the assessment of the
ks ol material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

we bclieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
apinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Sienuiae of Internal Finaneial Controls Over Financial Reporting

bocompany's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
rezawding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
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eporting includes those policies and procedures that

Dy Pertain o the maintenance ol records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
arpositions ol the assets ol the company:

) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
swieients in-accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

1) provide reasonable assurance reparding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
Haposition ol the company’s assets Lthat could have a material effect on the financial statements.

cidivicnl Lmitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because ol the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over finaticial reporting, including the possibility of
sullusion orimproper management override of controls, material misstatements due to ercor or fraud may occur and not
be detected. Also. projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
beciiuse ol changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

S i

liour opinion. whereas the Company has developed some internal financial control systems over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, there is an
argent need Hor development of a comprehensive Internal Financial Control Manual based on the internal control over
Haanciul reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal contro! stated in
v Guidanee Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
sreanniants ol India and devising of process for periodic verification of the various modules of the referred manual.
Pheove milerence is drawn based on the following weaknesses observed :-

) The operation of company’s business are solely controlled by the South Central railway (SCR). All supporting
cvidences related to revenue booking are being controlted & managed by SCR only and not made available for

veritication,
1) There s no control over the revenue apportionment of SCR as the revenue sheets are sent by SCR to the

coimnpany only on provisional basis and collateral records neither supplied by the SCR nor maintained by the
company. As aresull, there is no basis to verify the same.

3 There is no control over the operation & maintenance (O&M) expense, overhead charges, indirect cost etc.
billed by the SCR and deducted from revenue dues to the company.

1) Absence of Internal Financial Controls has been felt in the booking of expenditure for the construction of the
project of the company. It is observed that the bills for construction of the project by the contractor (RVNL)
were sent from time to time to the company for payment, but such bills were only Xerox copies and not the
crivinal ones..
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5) As informed to us, there is no methodology on the part of the management to ensure the up to date progress of

expenditure on construction projects, including bills which are already in the pipeline and also which are
awaiting dispatch by the contractors for the construction.

For V.K.Khosla& Co.
Chartered Accountants

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27-09-2021
DIN: 21095943AAAAFD3844

-——  FCA, Partner
Membership No.:095943
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KRISHNAPATNAM RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED

Regd. office: Amsri Faust Complex, Door No 8-1-164/A-166, 5" Floor, Sarojini Devi Road,
Secunderabad- 5000083, Telangana, CIN NO. U45200TG2006PLC051378

sl
No.

Auditor’s Comments for Financial Year 2020-21

Management Reply

Basis for Qualified Opinion:

The Company’s revenue are carried in the
statement of Profit & Loss a/c under note 19
(revenue from operations being Rs. 18319.29
lakhs). Monthly revenue bills / apportionment
sheet of revenue are received from SCR. All these
invoices are marked as “Provisional”. The
outcome of provisional invoicing are not known at
subsequent dates. Further, supporting documents
of the monthly revenue bills are not available. As
stated in note 19(i)(d), all supporting evidences
related to revenue booking are being controlled
and managed by the SCR only and not made
available for verification. The monthly revenue
statements arc not checked and certified by the
company. Further, as referred by management of
the company vide Note 19(i)(c), the revenue is
provisional subject to Railway Board Decisions
w.r.t revenue on account of Apportioned Terminal
Cost from SCR. Thus, operating revenue could
not be verified. Financial impact, if any, cannot be
ascertained. Thus, the total Final Accounts are
drawn on the strength of provisional unverified
Revenue. Further, the company has material
uncertain tax positions including matter under
dispute which involves significant judgment to
determine the possible outcome of these disputes.

[t is the practice of Railway Administration to
furnish such statements, viz., Revenue or
O&M or any other amount paid to be marked
as ‘Provisional’.

KRCL do not have any control over the
practices followed by Railway
Administration.

Revenue Statements are always checked by
KRCL officers at Secunderabad. Copies of all
revenue statements certified by CFO/KRCL
and Sr. Technical Manager/KRCL have been
furnished to Audit team.
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Auditor’s Comments for Financial Year 2020-21

Management Reply

Emphasis of Matters

The balances relating to debtors and vendors are
subject to confirmation.

Balance Confirmation is not furnished by
SCR as per the Practice of Railways.

Further, Balance Confirmation of the major
creditor i.e., RVNL was furnished already.

The company is not charging GST in its revenue as
Company is of the view that the revenue that it is
getting from the Railways is not supplies but is
merely apportionment of carning (being return on
mvestment made by the SPV). Company has
received favourable order from CESTAT under
service tax regime on the issue. However, the
matter stands open in the GST regime and the
Company is in discussion with Railways who have
secked clarification from the Finance Ministry..
Further, in GST returns filed by the company, only
RCM on advocate / arbitrary services is considered
in return. The company has accordingly, not
reflected any revenue in GST returns, either in Nil
Rated Supply / Zero Rated Supply or Exempt
Supply. The matter is under litigation since the
Service Tax Regime.

Further, the company has not provided for
liability to pay GST under reverse charge
mechanism in respect of O&M costs as billed by
SCR as the company feels there is no supply of
service and accordingly they are not liable for
GST. This has resulted in understatement of
expenditure & over statement of profit by
Rs.3.86 Cr.

Revenue is collected by Indian Railway (IR).
IR is paying the necessary GST to the
Government of India. Hence, further, GST is
not to be paid by KRCL.

Amount of O&M Costs deducted from
Apportioned Revenue is in the nature of
allocation of cost between SCR and KRCL, as
such there is no service provided by SCR to
KRCL. SCR is performing operations and for

carrying out operations, Maintenance s
mandatory, so these two activities are
complementary.  Hence, Operations and

Maintenance cannot be seen as two separate
activities. Due to operations, whatever
revenue is generated, GST is paid to
Government by SCR.

Since there is no service, therefore no GST is
payable on O&M Costs.

Recognition & measurement of O & M expenses:

In the absence of availability of records/ documents
in support of the monthly O&M bills sent by SCR,
such bills are not checked/ certified by the
company. The same are taken as shared by SCR
Financial impact, if any, cannot be ascertained.

Detailed Monthly O&M Bills are duly
checked and verified by CFO/KRCL and Sr.
Technical Manager/KRCL.

Identifying and assessing the risk of material
misstatement  w.r.t Capitalization of Intangible
Assets

In 2017, the detailed estimate submitted by
RVNL was Rs. 1850 Cr. (Hard Cost), which
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Intangible Assets capitalized during the year relates
to the construction of all three phases & related
ancillary constructions. The expenditure incurred by
the company for FY 2020-21 was Rs.29.33 Cr.
Cumulative expenditure up to 31.03.2020 was
Rs.2646.57 Crores and the cumulative expenditure
upto 31.03.2021 was Rs. 2675.90 crore. This
project started in 2008 with an estimated cost of
Rs.732 crore Thereafter, the project cost was
revised from time to time to Rs.1203 crore in 201 1
and Rs.1866 Crore in 2016. It was then estimated
that the cost was likely to go up to Rs.2060 Crore. It
was to be completed in November 2018, but Phase
IT has become commercially operational on 3rd July
2019 only. The cumulative expenditure of this
project has gone up to Rs.2675.90 crore as on
31.03.2021.

In addition the company is still receiving
expenditure bills form RVNL and there are further
bills in the pipeline. Board is yet to approve
increased cost. Details of project cost were to be
made available by RVNL which were to be verified
by Independent agency. RVNL have yet to give
project cost/completion/handover certificate to the
company.

It is a fact that the cost of the Project has
increased to certain extent primarily due to
change in geology of two Tunnels mid-way of
the longest tunnel (7 Km. in length) while
excavation was continuing.

Due to which the progress of the work was
hindered in order to mitigate the problem in
respect of change in technology.

Further Change of the scope of the project
had also taken place in form of elimination of
LC Gates as directed by MoR. Due to which
47 RUBs needed to be constructed on high
embankments, which alone led to cost
escalation to the extent of over Rs. 400 Cr.

The project became operational on July 03,
2019, but a few ancillaries works being
completed. Due to this Construction Bills are
still received from RVNL. Approval for Rs.
2646.75 crore has been obtained from the 60"
BoD meeting held on 25/07/2020.

However, during the year 2020-21, the
company received construction expenditure
bills for an amount Rs. 29.33 crore

(approximately) from RVNL and the bills are
still coming in. Since, the Board of Directors
in its 6lst BOD dt. 24.09.2020, approved
expenditure of Rs. 17.32 crore only for
construction of Two additional stations.
Capitalization of the excess expenditure of Rs
12.01 crore (approx.) as per bills submitted by
RVNL, in KRCL books of accounts during
FY 2020-21. Approval has been obtained
from the BoD in its 65th meeting held on
26/08/2021.

Attention is drawn to the following Notes to the

Final Accounts:-

a) Note no 13.1.1 which refers to re-schedulement
of Secured Loans on account of extention of
COD. The same reflects on company’s
tightness in generating adequate revenue to
meet debt obligations.

a) Company is duly secrvicing interest on
Banks Loan for past eight years without
any default, Repayment of Principal Loan
amount has also started from September
2019. Up to March 2021, the Company
paid Interest on Loan as well as
installments of Principal Loan without any
default.

b) Note-5.2 which refers to the fact that RVNL is | b) There is no clause in the existing
SIVAPRASAD ., . ... /ér-
090 KASTURI
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d)

f)

g)

charging interest on delay in payment for
project expenditure inclusive of D& G charges
whereas as per management, construction
agreement does not contain any provision for
charging the interest on D&G charges.

Note No.5.4 of the final accounts according to
which D&G charges being capitalized and
amortized is subject to change based on
outcome of final of actual completion cost.

Note no-19(1)(b)&(c) under Revenue from
Operations. The company’s claim relating to
(a) earning on length of about 14.45 Km
section from Krishnapatnam Railway and (b)
apportionment of Terminal costs. These issues
are now pending for Arbitration and Final
decision of Ministry of Railways is pending. So
Revenue is subject to these.

Note No. 34, where, in absence of any approval
from the board of the Company the figure for
Capital Commitment has not been estimated
and accordingly has not been shown under
Capital Commitment as on 31.03.2021.

Note No. 4.3 according to which Assets of
phase-1, phase-2 & phase-3 of the company are
not insured as on balance sheet date, as
required under the Loan Agreement dated 23rd
November, 2007.

Note no 21 (iii) & (iv) and as such Operation
Agreement is yet to be entered into with SCR
pertaining to operation of phase-IIT which is
function since 2nd march 2014 and Phase 11
which is function since 3rd July 2019, Thus
accounting for of revenue and operation cost of
Phase-IIT between KRCL and SCR is being
made on the basis of Operation and
Maintenance Agreement for Phase-1. If the
terms of agreement change the related revenue
and operation cost will vary and the amount
unascertained.

Construction Agreement executed between
RVNL and KRCL, which prohibits RVNL

from  charging interest on D&G
outstanding Amount.
At the time of " re-conciliation after
completion of all balance works, this
issue/matter will be raised to RVNL.

c) At present RVNL is charging D&G

Charges in accordance with provisions of
Construction Agreement.
On Completion of work, final D&G
Charge will be calculated and actual impact
will be taken in Financial Statements.

d) Statement of fact.

¢) Statement of fact.

f) The Company is in the process of obtaining
insurance for entire project assets.

g) O&M Agreement for the entire project is to
be concluded, the same is under
consideration of with SCR for all Phases.
The existing O&M Agreement is being
followed till the new Agreement is signed.
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Auditor’s Comments fdr Financial Year
2020-21

Management Reply

Internal Financial Control

The operation of company’s business are solely
controlled by the South Central railway (SCR). All
supporting evidences related to revenue booking are
being controlled & managed by SCR only and not
made available for verification.

Every month reconciliation is being done with
the Traffic revenue Officer of SCR. RR wise
reconciliation is done every month by KRCL
officers in order to arrive at correct revenue of
the company. Also systematic records are
maintained.

There is no control over the revenue
apportionment of SCR as the revenue sheets are
sent by SCR to the company only on provisional
basis and collateral records neither supplied by the
SCR nor maintained by the company. As a result,
there is no basis to verify the same.

Comments are same as mentioned in [tem No.
| of Internal Financial Control above.

There is no control over the operation &
maintenance (O&M) expense, overhead charges,
indirect cost etc. billed by the SCR and deducted
from revenue dues to the company.

The matter has been raised in the meeting
with South Central Railway and KRCL
officials and the same has been minuted in
meetings.

In respect of any kind of over-charging in
O&M Costs, Company is following up with
South Central Railway, after issuing letters
for the refund of the same.

Absence of Internal Financial Controls has been felt
in the booking of expenditure for the construction
of the project of the company. It is observed that
the bills for construction of the project by the
contractor (RVNL) were sent from time to time to
the company for payment, but such bills were only
Xerox copies and not the original ones.

It is the practice of RVNL to provide the
photocopy of monthly Construction Bills to
KRCL and RVNL is retaining the original
bills for their record.

Since contractor is primarily appointed by
RVNL therefore original bills are retained by
RVNL, as a proof of expenditure RVNL
submits copy of invoices to company.

As informed to us, there is no methodology on the
part of the management to ensure the up to date
progress of expenditure on construction projects,
including bills which are already in the pipeline and
also which are awaiting dispatch by the contractors
for the construction.

RVNL submits monthly/bimonthly bills of the
contractors for ongoing construction of the
project. Since, RVNL is an EPC Contractor,
KRCL does not have any indication on the
forthcoming / future construction bills.
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 143 (6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF KRISHNAPATNAM RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITEDFOR THE

YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
The preparation of financial statements of Krishnapatnam Railway Company Limited for the

period ended 31 March 2021 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under
the Companies Act, 2013 is the responsibility of the management of the company. The Statutory
Auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 139 (5) of the
Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under Section 143 of the Act
based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under section
143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Revised Audit Report dated
27 September 2021 which supersedes their earlier Audit Report dated 26 August 2021.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a
supplementary audit of the financial statements of Krishnapatnam Railway Company Limited for
the period ended 31 March 2021 under section 143(6)(a) of the Act. This supplementary audit has
been carried out independently without access to the working papers of the statutory auditors and is
limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and company personnel and a selective
examination of some of the accounting records.

Based on my supplementary audit, I would like to highlight the following significant matters
under section 143(6)(b) of the Act which have come to my attention and which in my view are

necessary for enabling a better understanding of the financial statements and the related audit

report:
A. Comments on Financial Position
)] Assets
Non-current assets
(b) Other Intangible assets wunder development - Note Neo. 4
X 2,63,856.89 lakh)

A reference is invited to Note 39 (c¢) wherein it has been stated that contingent liability in
respect of departmental charges not claimed by Rail Vikas Nigam Limited (RVNL) at the rate of
five per cent of project cost is estimated at ¥ 114.12 crore. As the departmental charges were
payable by the Company to RVNL in terms of clause 10.3 of Construction Agreement (September
2011), the disclosure as contingent liability instead of “Other Financial Liability” was not proper.
This had resulted in understatement of “Other Financial Liability” by ¥ 114.12 crore and also

“Other Intangible Assets” by the same amount.

For and on the behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

. E"" - 3
7 (Subu R)
Place: New Delhi Principal Director of Audit
Dated: 07.10.2021 Railway Commerecial, New Delhi
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